
_____________________________________________________________________________ 
Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Board Of Directors 

Bill Lee, Chairman - City of Somerton, Susan Thorpe, Vice Chairman – Yuma County, Larry Killman  – 
Sec/Treasurer – Town of Wellton, Greg Wilkinson – City of Yuma, Brian Golding, Sr.-Quechan Tribe,  

Dr.  Michael Sabath - Northern Arizona University, Dr. Daniel Corr - Arizona Western College,  
Ralph Velez - City of San Luis, Paul Soto – Cocopah Tribe  

Shelly Kreger, Transit Director 

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority 
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

2715 East 14th Street, Yuma, AZ 85365-1900, Telephone: 928-539-7076 
Fax: 928-783-0309, email: info@ycipta.az.gov, Web: www.ycipta.az.gov  

NOTICE AND AGENDA OF THE REGULAR MEETING THE BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS OF THE YUMA COUNTY INTERGOVERNMENTAL PUBLIC 

TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY  
Pursuant to A.R.S. §38-431.02, notice is hereby given to the members of the Board of 
Directors of the Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority 
(“YCIPTA”) and to the general public that the Board of Directors will hold a meeting on: 

MONDAY, September 25, 2017 – 1:30 PM 
Yuma County Department of Development Services – Aldrich Hall 

2351 West 26th Street -- Yuma, AZ, 85364 

Unless otherwise noted, meetings held at the above location are open to the public. 

The Board of Directors may vote to go into executive session during the noticed meeting 
concerning any of the agenda items mentioned below. If authorized by the requisite vote of 
the Directors, the executive session will be held immediately after the vote and will not be 
open to the public. The executive session, if held, will be at the same meeting location set 
forth above. The discussion may relate to confidential matters permitted pursuant to 
A.R.S. §§ 38-431.03(A)(1)-(7). The Chairman or other presiding officer shall instruct the 
persons present at the executive session regarding the confidentiality requirements of the 
Open Meeting Laws. 

Pursuant to the Americans with Disabilities Act, reasonable accommodation 
requests may be made by contacting the Transit Director at 928-539-7076, ext 101 
(TTY/TDD - Arizona Relay Service 711). Requests should be made as early as 
possible to allow time to arrange the accommodation. 

The agenda for the meeting is as follows: 

CALL TO ORDER 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

CALL TO PUBLIC: The public is invited to speak on any item or any area of concern that is within the
jurisdiction of the YCIPTA Board of Directors. The Board is prohibited by the Arizona Open Meeting Law from 
discussing, considering or acting on items raised during the call to the public, but may direct the staff to place 
an item on a future agenda. Individuals are limited to a five-minute presentation. 

1

mailto:info@ycipta.az.gov
http://www.ycipta.az.gov/


YUMA COUNTY INTERGOVERNMENTAL PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY (YCIPTA) 
REGULAR BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING  
Monday, September 25, 2017 Page 2 of 3 

________________________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 
Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Board Of Directors 

Bill Lee, Chairman - City of Somerton, Susan Thorpe, Vice Chairman – Yuma County, Larry Killman  – 
Sec/Treasurer – Town of Wellton, Greg Wilkinson – City of Yuma, Brian Golding, Sr.-Quechan Tribe,  

Dr.  Michael Sabath - Northern Arizona University, Dr. Daniel Corr - Arizona Western College,  
Ralph Velez - City of San Luis, Paul Soto – Cocopah Tribe  

Shelly Kreger, Transit Director 

CONSENT CALENDAR:  The following items listed under the Consent Calendar will be considered 
as a group and acted upon by one motion with no separate discussion, unless a board member so requests. In 
that event, the item will be removed for separate discussion and action.

1. Adopt the July 24, 2017 regular minutes.    Pg. 4

DISCUSSION & ACTION ITEMS: 

1. Discussion and or action regarding the Chairman, Vice Chairman and 
Secretary/Treasurer positions.  Action required.   Pg. 7

2. Discussion and or action regarding the First Amendment to Grant Pass 
Through Intergovernmental Agreement between YCIPTA and City of Yuma 
for Federal Transit Grant Funding.  Action required.   Pg. 17

3. Discussion and or action regarding the First Amendment to 
Intergovernmental Agreement between YCIPTA and the City of Yuma for 
the Provision of Information Technology Services.  Action required. Pg. 21

4. Discussion and or action regarding the Second Amendment to the Amended 
and Restated Agreement and Declaration of Trust of the Yuma Area Benefit 
Consortium Trust Agreement.  Action required.    Pg. 28

5. Discussion and or action regarding the Third Amendment to the 
Independent Contractors Agreement for Transit Advertising Services. 
Action Required.        Pg. 57

6. Discussion and or action regarding the First Amendment to Agreement for 
the Provision of General Public Fixed-Route and Demand Response 
Services.  Action Required.      Pg. 61 

PROGRESS REPORTS: 
1. Operations Manager Report – George Rodriguez, National Express 

Operations Manager.  No action is required.                 Provided at meeting

2. Transit Director Report – Shelly Kreger, YCIPTA Transit Director.  No action 
is required.         Pg.256 

2



YUMA COUNTY INTERGOVERNMENTAL PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY (YCIPTA) 
REGULAR BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING  
Monday, September 25, 2017 Page 3 of 3 

________________________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 
Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Board Of Directors 

Bill Lee, Chairman - City of Somerton, Susan Thorpe, Vice Chairman – Yuma County, Larry Killman  – 
Sec/Treasurer – Town of Wellton, Greg Wilkinson – City of Yuma, Brian Golding, Sr.-Quechan Tribe,  

Dr.  Michael Sabath - Northern Arizona University, Dr. Daniel Corr - Arizona Western College,  
Ralph Velez - City of San Luis, Paul Soto – Cocopah Tribe  

Shelly Kreger, Transit Director 

3. Transit Ridership – Carol Perez, Management Analyst/Mobility Manager 
No action is required.       Pg.257

4. Financial Report – Chona Medel, YCIPTA Financial Services Operations 
Manager. No action is required.     Pg.258 

SCHEDULE NEXT MEETING DATE AND IDENTIFY AGENDA ITEMS: 
The next Board meeting is scheduled for Monday, October 23, 2017.   

ADJOURNMENT 

3



YUMA COUNTY INTERGOVERNMENTAL PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY (YCIPTA) REGULAR BOARD 
OF DIRECTORS MEETING MONDAY, July 24, 2017.                                           Page 1 of 3  

The Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority (YCIPTA) met in Regular 
Session on Monday, July 24, 2017 at the Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation 
Authority (YCIPTA) office 2715 E 14th St Yuma, AZ 85365. The Chairman called the meeting to 
order at 1:33 p.m. 

Members present: 
Paul Soto/Cocopah Indian Tribe 

Members present via phone: 
Bill Lee/City of Somerton/Chairman 
Susan Thorpe/Yuma County/Vice Chair 
Larry Killman/Town of Wellton/Secretary/Treasurer 
Daniel Corr/Arizona Western College 
Ralph Velez/City of San Luis 
Greg Wilkinson/City of Yuma 

Members Excused: 
Brian Golding, Sr./Quechan Indian Tribe 
Michael Sabath/Northern Arizona University 

Other Present: 
Shelly Kreger/YCIPTA/Transit Director 
Chona Medel/YCIPTA/Financial Services Operations Manager 
Carol Perez/ YCIPTA/ Management Analyst  
Daisy Ruiz/YCIPTA/Office Specialist I  

The Pledge of Allegiance was not performed. 

Call to Public: There was no call to the public, as no one was present. 

DISCUSSION & ACTION ITEMS: 

No 1: Discussion and or action regarding the extension of the YCIPTA Quechan MOU 
Exhibit A and the EICTS operations Business Plan through June 30, 2018. Action Required. 

Ms. Kreger stated that the contributions are from Quechan and Imperial Valley. They will not 
exceed Quechan’s $214,000 and Imperial Valley’s $138,000 for the period of July 1, 2017 to June 
1, 2018. 

Motion (Wilkinson/Corr): Approved items presented. 
Voice Vote: Motion Carries, 7-0 with Mr. Golding and Mr. Sabath excused. 

No.2: Discussion and or action regarding the YCIPTA Title VI Implementation Plan. Action 
required. 

Ms. Kreger stated that having an Implementation Plan and Public Participation Plan is required 
for anyone receiving federal funding.  

Ms. Kreger stated that upon approval, it will be submitted to the Federal Transportation Authority 
(FTA) and the Arizona Department of Transportation (ADOT).  

Dr. Corr inquired if this is an annual requirement. 

4



YUMA COUNTY INTERGOVERNMENTAL PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY (YCIPTA) REGULAR BOARD 
OF DIRECTORS MEETING MONDAY, July 24, 2017.                                           Page 2 of 3  

Ms. Kreger stated that the FTA requires us to update every 3 years. 

Motion (Velez/Killman): Approved items presented. 
Voice Vote: Motion Carries, 7-0 with Mr. Golding and Mr. Sabath excused. 

Ms. Thorpe joined via telephone. 

Progress Reports: 

No. 1: Operations Manager Report – George Rodriguez, National Express Operations 
Manager. No action required. Not available.  

No. 2: Transit Director Report – Shelly Kreger, YCIPTA Transit Director. No action required. 

Ms. Kreger presented item as contained in the member packet. No action taken. 

Mr. Lee inquired into what precautions we are taking to prevent the trolley from breaking down. 

Ms. Kreger stated that it will be in excellent condition and we will assist them in anything they 
need. 

No.3: Transit Ridership & Customer Comment Report – Carol Perez, YCIPTA Management 
Analyst/Mobility Manager. No action required. 

Ms. Perez presented item as contained in the member packet. No action taken. 

Mr. Lee inquired if the increase was from the Dump the Pump event. 

Ms. Perez stated that the numbers are close to last year’s. 

Mr. Lee also inquired about the increase in passengers and if it might be from the students that 
will be attending Arizona Western College (AWC). 

Ms. Perez stated that it was a national trend. 

No. 4: Financial Report – Chona Medel, YCIPTA Financial Services Operations Manager. 
No action is required. 

Mrs. Medel presented item as contained in the member packet. No action taken. 

SCHEDULE NEXT MEETING DATE AND IDENTIFY AGENDA ITEMS: 
The next Board meeting is scheduled for Monday, August 28, 2017.  

ADJOURNMENT 

There being no further business to come before the Authority, the Chairman adjourned the 
meeting at 1:45 p.m.  

YUMA COUNTY INTERGOVERNMENTAL TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 

5



YUMA COUNTY INTERGOVERNMENTAL PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY (YCIPTA) REGULAR BOARD 
OF DIRECTORS MEETING MONDAY, July 24, 2017.                                           Page 3 of 3  

Adopted this _______________________, 2017, Agenda Item ______ 

_____________________________________________ 
Daisy Ruiz, Board Secretary 

6



_____________________________________________________________________________ 
Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Board Of Directors 

Bill Lee, Chairman - City of Somerton, Susan Thorpe, Vice Chairman – Yuma County, Larry Killman  – 
Sec/Treasurer – Town of Wellton, Greg Wilkinson – City of Yuma, Brian Golding, Sr.-Quechan Tribe,  

Dr.  Michael Sabath - Northern Arizona University, Dr. Daniel Corr - Arizona Western College,  
Ralph Velez - City of San Luis, Paul Soto – Cocopah Tribe  

Shelly Kreger, Transit Director 

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority 
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

2715 East 14th Street, Yuma, AZ 85365-1900, Telephone: 928-539-7076 
Fax: 928-783-0309, email: info@ycipta.az.gov, Web: www.ycipta.az.gov  

September 25, 2017 

Discussion and Action Item 1 

To: Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority  
Board of Directors 

From: Shelly Kreger, Transit Director 
Subject: Discussion and or action regarding the Chairman, Vice Chairman and 

Secretary/Treasurer positions. 
__________________________________________________________________ 

Requested Action:  Unknown 

Background and Summary:  The current Chairman of the YCIPTA Board of 
Directors, Bill Lee from the City of Somerton, has resigned as the City Manager 
and as such is no longer the Chairman of the YCIPTA Board.  It does not explicitly 
state in the By-Laws how the position of Chairman be filled.  It has been normal 
practice that when the new year begins the current Vice Chairman will become the 
Chairman and the Secretary/Treasurer will become the Vice Chairman. 
Nominations and a vote of the board will then fill the Secretary/Treasurer position. 
With there being only three months left in the current year the board needs to 
decide if the election of the Secretary/Treasurer should take place this board 
meeting, having Susan Thorpe – Yuma County become Chairperson, Larry Killman 
– Town of Wellton to Vice Chairman and election of Secretary/Treasurer with terms
ending in January of 2019, or waiting until January 2018 to shift positions.

Recommended Motion: Unknown 

Fiscal Impact:  None 

Legal Counsel Review: No 

Attachments:  YCIPTA By-Laws 

7

mailto:info@ycipta.az.gov
http://www.ycipta.az.gov/


_____________________________________________________________________________ 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Board Of Directors 
Bill Lee, Chairman - City of Somerton, Susan Thorpe, Vice Chairman – Yuma County, Larry Killman  – 
Sec/Treasurer – Town of Wellton, Greg Wilkinson – City of Yuma, Brian Golding, Sr.-Quechan Tribe,  

Dr.  Michael Sabath - Northern Arizona University, Dr. Daniel Corr - Arizona Western College,  
Ralph Velez - City of San Luis, Paul Soto – Cocopah Tribe  

Shelly Kreger, Transit Director 

For information on this staff report, please contact Shelly Kreger, Transit Director 
via email at skreger@ycipta.az.gov or call 928-539-7076, extension 101. 

Approved for Submission 

Shelly Kreger 
Transit Director 

8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



_____________________________________________________________________________ 
Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Board Of Directors 

Bill Lee, Chairman - City of Somerton, Susan Thorpe, Vice Chairman – Yuma County, Larry Killman  – 
Sec/Treasurer – Town of Wellton, Greg Wilkinson – City of Yuma, Brian Golding, Sr.-Quechan Tribe,  

Dr.  Michael Sabath - Northern Arizona University, Dr. Daniel Corr - Arizona Western College,  
Ralph Velez - City of San Luis, Paul Soto – Cocopah Tribe  

Shelly Kreger, Transit Director 

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority 
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

2715 East 14th Street, Yuma, AZ 85365-1900, Telephone: 928-539-7076 
Fax: 928-783-0309, email: info@ycipta.az.gov, Web: www.ycipta.az.gov  

September 25, 2017 

Discussion and Action Item 2 

To: Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority 
Board of Directors 

From: Shelly Kreger, Transit Director 
Subject: Discussion and or action regarding the First Amendment to Grant 

Pass Through Intergovernmental Agreement between YCIPTA and 
City of Yuma for Federal Transit Grant Funding. 

__________________________________________________________________ 

Requested Action: Staff recommends that the Yuma County Intergovernmental 
Public Transportation Authority (YCIPTA) Board of Directors approve the First 
Amendment to Grant Pass Through Intergovernmental Agreement between 
YCIPTA and City of Yuma for Federal Transit Grant Funding. 

Background and Summary:  YCIPTA and the City are parties to the certain Grant 
Pass Through Intergovernmental Agreement effective February 26, 2015 (“IGA”) 
pursuant to which YCIPA passed funds from Grant Numbers AZ-90-X132 and AZ-
90-X127 to the City to provide final design and pre-construction costs associated
with the rehabilitation of the Hotel Del Sol for use as a multimodal transportation
center.   The term of the IGA expired August 26, 2017 but grant funds remain that
may be used toward the improvement and rehabilitation of the Hotel Del Sol; and,
YCITPA and the City desire to extend the term of the IGA to allow the City to use
remaining grant funds for the improvement and rehabilitation of the Hotel Del Sol.
The term of this agreement shall expire August 31, 2018

Recommended Motion: That the Yuma County Intergovernmental Public 
Transportation Authority Board of Directors vote to approve the First Amendment 
to Grant Pass Through Intergovernmental Agreement between YCIPTA and City of 
Yuma for Federal Transit Grant Funding. 

Fiscal Impact:  Included in current budget. 

17

mailto:info@ycipta.az.gov
http://www.ycipta.az.gov/


_____________________________________________________________________________ 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Board Of Directors 
Bill Lee, Chairman - City of Somerton, Susan Thorpe, Vice Chairman – Yuma County, Larry Killman  – 
Sec/Treasurer – Town of Wellton, Greg Wilkinson – City of Yuma, Brian Golding, Sr.-Quechan Tribe,  

Dr.  Michael Sabath - Northern Arizona University, Dr. Daniel Corr - Arizona Western College,  
Ralph Velez - City of San Luis, Paul Soto – Cocopah Tribe  

Shelly Kreger, Transit Director 

Legal Counsel Review: Yes 

Attachments:  First Amendment to Grant Pass Through Intergovernmental 
Agreement between YCIPTA and City of Yuma for Federal Transit Grant Funding. 

For information on this staff report, please contact Shelly Kreger, Transit Director 
via email at skreger@ycipta.az.gov or call 928-539-7076, extension 101. 

Approved for Submission 

Shelly Kreger 
Transit Director 

18



First Amedment to YCIPTA / City of Yuma Grant Pass Through IGA for Federal Transit Funding, Page 1 of 
2 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO 
GRANT PASS THROUGH INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN 

YUMA COUNTY INTERGOVERNMENTAL  
PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY  

and   
CITY OF YUMA 

FOR FEDERAL TRANSIT GRANT FUNDING 

This First Amendment to the Grant Pass Through Intergovernmental Agreement (“Amendment”) 
is entered into as of ______________________, 2017 (“Effective Date”), between the Yuma 
County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority, a political subdivision of the State of 
Arizona (“YCIPTA”), and City of Yuma, an Arizona municipal corporation (the “City”). 
YCIPTA and the City are sometimes referred to herein individually as the “Party” and 
collectively as the “Parties”. 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, YCIPTA and the City are parties to the certin Grant Pass Through Intergovernment 
Agreement effective February 26, 2015 (“IGA”) pursuant to which YCIPA passed funds from 
Grant Numbers AZ-90-X132 and AZ-90-X127 to the City to provide final design and pre-
construction costs associated with the rehabilitation of the Hotel Del Sol for use as a multimodal 
transportation center;  

WHEREAS, the term of the IGA expired August 26, 2017 but grant funds remain that may be 
used toward the improvement and rehabilitation of the Hotel Del Sol; and, 

WHEREAS, YCITPA and the City desire to extend the term of the IGA to allow the City to use 
remaining grant funds for the improvement and rehabilitation of the Hotel Del Sol. 

NOW THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which 
is hereby acknowledged, the Parties do hereby mutually agree to the following: 

1. Incorporation of Recitals. The Recitals are acknowledged by the Parties to be
substantially true and correct, and hereby incorporated as agreements of the Parties.

2. Term.  Section 2 of the IGA, titled “Term of Agreement”, is hereby deleted and replaced
with the following:

Term of Agreement.  The Term of this Agreement shall expire on August 31, 2018.

3. Nature of Amendment.  Except for the modifications set forth in this Amendment, the
IGA remains in full force and effect.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this First Amendment as of the date first 
set forth above. 

19



First Amedment to YCIPTA / City of Yuma IGA for FTA Grant, Page 2 of 2 

CITY OF YUMA YUMA COUNTY INTERGOVERNMENTAL 
PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 

________________________________ ________________________________ 
Gregory K. Wilkinson, Shelly Kreger, CCTM 
City of Yuma - Administrator  Transit Director 

ATTEST 

_______________________________ 
Lynda L. Bushong  
City Clerk 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT APPROVAL 

The foregoing First Amendment has, prior to its execution, been submitted to the attorney for 
each Party, who has determined that the intergovernmental agreement is in proper form and is 
within the powers and authority granted under the laws of this state to such Party. 

Dated this _____ day of _______________, 2017 

By:______________________________ 
           Minda M. Davy   

YCIPTA Attorney 

Dated this _____ day of _______________, 2017 

By:______________________________ 
           Richard Files 

Yuma City Attorney 

20



_____________________________________________________________________________ 
Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Board Of Directors 

Bill Lee, Chairman - City of Somerton, Susan Thorpe, Vice Chairman – Yuma County, Larry Killman  – 
Sec/Treasurer – Town of Wellton, Greg Wilkinson – City of Yuma, Brian Golding, Sr.-Quechan Tribe,  

Dr.  Michael Sabath - Northern Arizona University, Dr. Daniel Corr - Arizona Western College,  
Ralph Velez - City of San Luis, Paul Soto – Cocopah Tribe  

Shelly Kreger, Transit Director 

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority 
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

2715 East 14th Street, Yuma, AZ 85365-1900, Telephone: 928-539-7076 
Fax: 928-783-0309, email: info@ycipta.az.gov, Web: www.ycipta.az.gov  

September 25, 2017 

Discussion and Action Item 3 

To: Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority 
Board of Directors 

From: Shelly Kreger, Transit Director 
Subject: Discussion and or action regarding the First Amendment to 

Intergovernmental Agreement between YCIPTA and the City of 
Yuma for the Provision of Information Technology Services. 

__________________________________________________________________ 

Requested Action: Staff recommends that the Yuma County Intergovernmental 
Public Transportation Authority (YCIPTA) Board of Directors approve the First 
Amendment to Intergovernmental Agreement between YCIPTA and the City of 
Yuma for the Provision of Information Technology Services. 

Background and Summary:  YCIPTA and the City of Yuma wish to extend the IGA 
for Information Technology Services for the term of two years, ending on June 30, 
2019.  The cost for the services have increased from $800 to $1,000 per month.  
With the increase in the monthly expense, the City of Yuma ITS will provide 
network consulting services for a possible future move to a new location to include 
the following: 

• Provide design details and specifications for the communications closet
• Provide design and specifications for the riser cable and horizontal network

cable runs
• Recommend a local communication contractor to do any additional

communication cabling that may need to be done and certify their work
• Inspect and approve all work done by the communications contractor
• Coordinate with Altura, your Avaya key phone system vendor, to get a quote

for relocation services and do any foot work required for them to expedite
the work and lower the cost.

• Disconnect all City maintained computer equipment and provide packing
direction

21

mailto:info@ycipta.az.gov
http://www.ycipta.az.gov/


_____________________________________________________________________________ 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Board Of Directors 
Bill Lee, Chairman - City of Somerton, Susan Thorpe, Vice Chairman – Yuma County, Larry Killman  – 
Sec/Treasurer – Town of Wellton, Greg Wilkinson – City of Yuma, Brian Golding, Sr.-Quechan Tribe,  

Dr.  Michael Sabath - Northern Arizona University, Dr. Daniel Corr - Arizona Western College,  
Ralph Velez - City of San Luis, Paul Soto – Cocopah Tribe  

Shelly Kreger, Transit Director 

• Reconnect and test all City maintained computer equipment once unpacked
at new location.

• Provide any other IT related consulting needed to assist with a smooth
transition to your new location

Recommended Motion: That the Yuma County Intergovernmental Public 
Transportation Authority Board of Directors vote to approve the First Amendment 
to Intergovernmental Agreement between YCIPTA and the City of Yuma for the 
Provision of Information Technology Services 

Fiscal Impact:  Included in current budget. 

Legal Counsel Review: Yes 

Attachments:  First Amendment to Intergovernmental Agreement between YCIPTA 
and the City of Yuma for the Provision of Information Technology Services 

For information on this staff report, please contact Shelly Kreger, Transit Director 
via email at skreger@ycipta.az.gov or call 928-539-7076, extension 101. 

Approved for Submission 

Shelly Kreger 
Transit Director 

22



First Amedment to YCIPTA / City of Yuma IGA for IT, Page 1 of 5 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN  

YUMA COUNTY INTERGOVERNMENTAL  
PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY  

and   
CITY OF YUMA 

FOR THE PROVISION OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY SERVICES 

This First Amendment to the Intergovernmental Agreement (“Amendment”) is entered into as of 
______________________, 2017 (“Effective Date”), between the Yuma County 
Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority, a political subdivision of the State of 
Arizona (“YCIPTA”), and City of Yuma, an Arizona municipal corporation (the “City”). 
YCIPTA and the City are sometimes referred to herein individually as the “Party” and 
collectively as the “Parties”. 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, YCIPTA and the City are parties to a certin intergovernment agreement effective 
September 19, 2014 (“IGA”) pursuant to which the City provides information techonology 
services to YCIPTA;  

WHEREAS, the Parties extended the term of the IGA through September 18, 2017; 

WHEREAS, YCIPTA has determined that the IGA with the City for information technology 
related services may continue based upon the availability of funding, and as such, YCIPTA’s 
Board of Directors authorized the second extension of the IGA on the ___ day of 
_____________, 20__; 

WHEREAS, YCIPTA would like the City to provide certain information techonology services 
which were not included in the IGA; 

WHEREAS, the City is willing provide such additional services for additional consideration and 
to extend the IGA in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth in this Amendment. 

NOW THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which 
is hereby acknowledged, the Parties do hereby mutually agree to the following: 

1. Incorporation of Recitals. The Recitals are acknowledged by the Parties to be
substantially true and correct, and hereby incorporated as agreements of the Parties.

2. Scope of Services.  Section II of the IGA, titled “Scope of Services”, is amended only to
the extent to delete the following crossed-out language and add the following underlined
language:

A. CITY OF YUMA:

City of Yuma Information Technology Services (“ITS”) will provide technical and 
consulting services to YCIPTA when the support capacity is available in relation to the 
purchase, installation and maintenance support of the following items: 

23



First Amedment to YCIPTA / City of Yuma IGA for IT, Page 2 of 5 

. . . . 

3. Infrastructure Services Support
a. Maintenance of current network infrastructure infrastructure that was

previously installed by the Yuma County ITS;
b. Enhancement or replacement of network equipment as needed, cost

passed through to YCIPTA;
c. Restoration and backup of data stored on server storage;, and
d. Support of Network Connectivity; and
e. Support of Wi-Fi Network Connectivity.

. . . . 

5. Email Services Support
a. Provide email accounts for up to twenty (20) YCIPTA

users.Maintenance of email services / administrative tasks from third-
party (go-daddy) accounts, e.g., setting up desktop Outlook to email
services and calendar services.

b. Maintenance of email services / administrative tasks for City provided
accounts, (i.e. setting up desktop Outlook to email services and
calendar services).YCIPTA shall be responsible for paying email
service provider for exchange or email services.

. . . . 

B. YCIPTA:

In order to defray the cost of the services to the City, YCIPTA will compensate
the City for providing the services and support outlined herein.

1. Contract Monthly Rate

Service Contracted Rate 
One-time initial “Health Check” $ 800.00 
Contract Rate (29 hrs / mo, 5-6 hrs / wk, 1/6 FTE 
) 

$ 800 1,000.00 per month 

System Administration Administrative Included 
Applications Included 
Email Accounts and Service for up to 20 users Included 
Desktop Support for up to 16 Client Computers Included 
Network / Security / Anti-virus Support Included 
Wi-Fi Network Support Included 
VPN Client Support Included 
Cost Per Mile Included 
One unsolicited site visit per week by technician Included 
Site visits by technician upon request during 
normal working hours 

Included 

24



First Amedment to YCIPTA / City of Yuma IGA for IT, Page 3 of 5 

Help Desk support during normal business hours 
(Remote Assistance) 

Included 

Hardware, Software and Consumables Additional cost per item 
After hours support (i.e. after 6:00 P.M. and 
before 7:00 A.M., or on a dark Friday or City 
recognized holiday). 

Additional cost per hour $50 
per hour. 

2. YCIPTA resources must be readily available when ITS staff provides
support.

3. YCIPTA shall pay all invoices for services within thirty (30) days of the
date of receipt. The City will bill YCIPTA on a monthly basis the 1st day
of each month.

4. YCIPTA shall not allow equipment maintained by ITS to be accessed by
any other service provider without prior ITS approval, which approval
shall not be unreasonably withheld.

5. If YCIPTA’s monthly support hours exceed 29 hours in a given month, an
hourly rate of $27.59 per hour will be charged for the additional support.
If any City ITS staff assigned to provide support to YCIPTA incurs
overtime while providing YCIPTA with support services, YCIPTA shall
pay an overtime rate of $41.38/hr. will apply tofor all YCIPTA support
hours in excess of that City ITS support person’s 40-hour work week.
Except for requests for after hours support, as defined in Section II(B) of
this Agreement, YCIPTA may inquire as to whether City ITS staff will be
incurring overtime, and may request a City ITS staff member that would
not be incurring overtime, and the City shall make its best efforts to
accomodate the request.

3. Term.  Section III of the IGA, titled “Term,” is amended to delete the following crossed-
out language and add the following underlined language:

Term. This IGA shall be for an term of one (1) year, commence on the Effective Date
and terminate on June 30, 2019, unless earlier terminated by action of the Parties as
outlined in this IGA or by operation of law as described herein. This IGA may be
extended for four (4) additional one-year terms for up to five (5) terms, if the Parties
agree in writing to such extension.I

4. Indemnification.  Section V of the IGA, titled “Indemnification”, is amended to add the
following underlined language:

Each Party (the “Indemnitor”) to this IGA agrees to defend, indemnify and hold harmless
the other Party, and their officers, officials, employees, agents, representatives and
directors (the “Indemnitee”) from and against any and all claims, demands, damages,
losses, liabilities, causes of action, expenses and costs (including expert witness fees,
attorney’s fees and other reasonable costs of defense and any appeals) (collectively
“Claims”), which may be imposed upon, incurred by or asserted against a Partythe
Indmenitee, attributable (directly or indirectly) to, or arising in any manner by reason of
the Indemnitor’s intentional, reckless, or negligent acts, omissions, errors, directives,

25



First Amedment to YCIPTA / City of Yuma IGA for IT, Page 4 of 5 

negligence mistakes, misconduct or other fault of the other PartyIndemnitor, or of any 
agent, officer, servant or employee of the other PartyIndemnitor, or anyone for whom the 
Indemnitor may be legally liable in the performance or non-performance of this IGA, 
except to the extent such Claims arise out of or are based upon the negligent acts, 
mistakes, errors, or omissions of Indemnitee. 

5. Notices.  The address for notices sent to YCIPTA, as set forth in Section VII, subsection
G, titled “Notices”, is amended to read as follows:

If to YCIPTA: Shelly Kreger, Transit Director 
Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation 
Authority 
2715 East 14th Street 
Yuma, Arizona, 85365 
Tel: 928-539-7076, Ext. 101  
Fax: 928-783-0309  
skreger@ycipta.org 

6. Additional General Provisions.  Section VII is amended to add subsections N, to read as
follows:

N. Provisions Required by Law.  Each and every provision of law and any clause
required by law to be in the IGA will be read and enforced as though it were
included herein and, if through mistake or otherwise any such provision is not
inserted, or is not correctly inserted, then upon the application of either Party, the
IGA will promptly be physically amended by the Parties to make such insertion or
correction.

7. Nature of Amendment.  Except for the modifications set forth in this Amendment, the
IGA remains in full force and effect.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this First Amendment as of the date first 
set forth above. 

CITY OF YUMA YUMA COUNTY INTERGOVERNMENTAL 
PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 

________________________________ ________________________________ 
Gregory K. Wilkinson, Shelly Kreger, CCTM 
City of Yuma - Administrator  Transit Director 

ATTEST 

_______________________________ 
Lynda L. Bushong  
City Clerk 

26

mailto:jandoh@ycipta.org


First Amedment to YCIPTA / City of Yuma IGA for IT, Page 5 of 5 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT APPROVAL 

The foregoing First Amendment has, prior to its execution, been submitted to the attorney for 
each Party, who has determined that the intergovernmental agreement is in proper form and is 
within the powers and authority granted under the laws of this state to such Party. 

Dated this _____ day of _______________, 2017 

By:______________________________ 
           Minda M. Davy   

YCIPTA Attorney 

Dated this _____ day of _______________, 2017 

By:______________________________ 
           Richard Files 

Yuma City Attorney 

27



_____________________________________________________________________________ 
Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Board Of Directors 

Bill Lee, Chairman - City of Somerton, Susan Thorpe, Vice Chairman – Yuma County, Larry Killman  – 
Sec/Treasurer – Town of Wellton, Greg Wilkinson – City of Yuma, Brian Golding, Sr.-Quechan Tribe,  

Dr.  Michael Sabath - Northern Arizona University, Dr. Daniel Corr - Arizona Western College,  
Ralph Velez - City of San Luis, Paul Soto – Cocopah Tribe  

Shelly Kreger, Transit Director 

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority 
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

2715 East 14th Street, Yuma, AZ 85365-1900, Telephone: 928-539-7076 
Fax: 928-783-0309, email: info@ycipta.az.gov, Web: www.ycipta.az.gov  

September 25, 2017 

Discussion and Action Item 4 

To:  Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority  
Board of Directors 

From:  Shelly Kreger, Transit Director 
Subject: Discussion and or action regarding the Second Amendment to the 

Amended and Restated Agreement and Declaration of Trust of the 
Yuma Area Benefit Consortium Trust Agreement. 

__________________________________________________________________ 

Requested Action: Staff recommends that the Yuma County Intergovernmental 
Public Transportation Authority (YCIPTA) Board of Directors approve the Second 
Amendment to the Amended and Restated Agreement and Declaration of Trust of 
the Yuma Area Benefit Consortium Trust Agreement 

Background and Summary:  The Second Amendment consists of removing Yuma 
Elementary School District No. One (“YESD1”) as a participating Entity and to add 
the Housing Authority of the City of Yuma (“Yuma Housing Authority”) as an 
additional Participating Entity in the Trust.  All Participating Entities are required to 
approve and sign the Second Amendment. 

Recommended Motion: That the Yuma County Intergovernmental Public 
Transportation Authority Board of Directors vote to approve the Second 
Amendment to the Amended and Restated Agreement and Declaration of Trust of 
the Yuma Area Benefit Consortium Trust Agreement 

Fiscal Impact:  None. 

Legal Counsel Review: Yes 

Attachments:  Second Amendment to the Amended and Restated Agreement and 
Declaration of Trust of the Yuma Area Benefit Consortium Trust Agreement. 

28

mailto:info@ycipta.az.gov
http://www.ycipta.az.gov/


_____________________________________________________________________________ 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Board Of Directors 
Bill Lee, Chairman - City of Somerton, Susan Thorpe, Vice Chairman – Yuma County, Larry Killman  – 
Sec/Treasurer – Town of Wellton, Greg Wilkinson – City of Yuma, Brian Golding, Sr.-Quechan Tribe,  

Dr.  Michael Sabath - Northern Arizona University, Dr. Daniel Corr - Arizona Western College,  
Ralph Velez - City of San Luis, Paul Soto – Cocopah Tribe  

Shelly Kreger, Transit Director 

For information on this staff report, please contact Shelly Kreger, Transit Director 
via email at skreger@ycipta.az.gov or call 928-539-7076, extension 101. 

Approved for Submission 

Shelly Kreger 
Transit Director 

29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



^ O D ' j ' - ^ ^ 

AMENDED AND RESTATED 
AGREEMENT AND DECLARATION OF TRUST 

The Initial Agreement and Declaration of Tmst was made effective the first day of April 
1997, between the Yuma/LaPaz Counties Community College District (aka Arizona Westem 
College) ("AWC"), Crane Elementary School District No. 13 ("Crane"), and Yuma Elementary 
Schooi District No. One ("Yuma"), hereinafter referred to as the "Initial Participating Entities" 
and certain persons hereinafter'referred to as the "Tmstees" to administer the Tmst in accordance 
with the terms and provisions of this instmment. Effective on or about July 1, 2004, the City of 
Yuma (the "City") was admitted as an additional Participating Entity in the Tmst. The City and 
Initial Participating Entities are collectively referred to herein as the "Participating Entities." 
Pursuant to powers retained by the Participating Entities pursuant to Section 12.01 ofthe Initial 
Agreement and Declaration of Tmst, the Participating Entities hereby desire to Amend and 
Restate the Agreement and Declaration of Tmst as set forth herein effective the first day of July 
2005. 

WITNESSETH 

Whereas A.R.S. §11-952.01 permits two or more public agencies (1) to enter into 
contracts or agreements to purchase insurance jointly or to pool retention of such public 
agencies' risks for property, casualty and liability losses and to provide for the payment of 
property loss or claims of liability made against any member of such pool; or (2) to jointly form 
a nonprofit corporation to carry out the provisions of A.R.S. §11-952.01 on behalf of the 
members ofthe nonprofitxorporation directly or by contract with a private party. 

Whereas A.R.S. §15-382.8, 15-387 and §15-342(13) authorize school districts to enter 
into intergovernmental agreements or contracts pursuant to Title 11, Chapter 7, Article 3 or 
cooperative procurement agreements pursuant to mles adopted under §15-213, providing for a 
self-insurance program by a district or the joint purchase of insurance. 

Whereas, Arizona Westem College has the power and authority to contract (A.R.S. §15-
1444 (B) (3)); enter into intergovernmental agreements (A.R.S. §11-952); and provide for its 
employees' health, disability, death and related fringe benefits (A.R.S. §15-1444 (B) (5)); and 

Whereas, said Participating Entities and certain employees of said Participating Entities 
hereinafter designated and referred to as "Employees," desire to enter into a program of 
providing and maintaining health and welfare benefits for Employees ofthe Participating Entities 
and certain members of their families; and. 

Whereas, to effect the aforesaid purpose, it is mutually desirable by and between the 
parties hereto to declare and create a Tmst which establishes a Tmst Fund for and in the manner 
more particularly set forth herein; and, 

Now therefore, in consideration of the promises, covenants, agreements, terms, 
obligations and duties herein set forth, \\ is understood and agreed as follows: 

39



.>Q^3prou6dat<tiT$'pity'CouncitMe6tlng.i 

City Clerk: 

P: \itcMLk.Xu\h]m^...ji>^. 

40



ARTICLE I - DEFINITIONS 

It is mutually understood and agreed by and between the parties hereto that the following 
are and shall be the definitions: 

1.01 - Beneficiary. The tenn "Beneficiary" shall mean eligible employees, Goveming 
Board members, ex-Goveming Board members, retirees and their eligible dependents. 

1.02 - Employee. "Employee" shall mean all persons who have been employed by the 
Participating Entities on a regular basis, who work not less than the number of hours per week 
required by the Participating Entities for eligibility. 

1.03 - Employee Contribution. The term "Employee Contribution" shall mean the 
contributions made by the Employees of a Participating Entity to said Fund. 

1.04 - Fund. The term "Fund" as used herein shall mean the Tmst Fund created by this 
instrument, and shall mean generally the monies, property, contracts, or things of value, tangible 
or intangible, received and held by the Tmstees for the use and purposes set forth herein. 

1.05 - Governing Board. "Goveming Board" shall mean the elected board, council or 
other body charged with the general management and control of the affairs of a Participating 
Entity or a Prospective Member. 

1.06 - Health and Welfare Program. The term "Health and Welfare Program" shall 
mean the prograin of benefits to be established by the Tmstees pursuant to this Agreement and 
Declaration of Tmst. 

1.07 - Member Contributions. The term "Member Contributions" shall mean the 
contributions made by Participating Entities to the Fund for the Health and Welfare Program, 

1.08 - Participating Entities. The term "Participating Entities" shall mean each of the 
following: Arizona Westem College, Crane Elementary School District No. 13, Yuma 
Elementary School District No. One, the City of Yuma and members approved under Article IX. 

1.09 - Plan Document. The term "Plan Document" shall mean the document containing 
certain self-iunded or insured health and welfare benefits. 

1.10 - Trust Agreement. The term "Tmst Agreement" shall mean this Amended and 
Restated Agreement and Declaration of Tmst and any modifications or amendments thereto. 

1.11 - Trustees. The term "Tmstees" as used herein shall mean the Tmstees and any 
successors provided for in this Tmst Agreement. 

1.12 - Yuma Area Benefit Consortium. The name of this Trust shall be the Yuma Area 
Benefit Consortium. 

41



1.13 - Fiscal Agent. The term "Fiscal Agent" shall mean the Tmstee assigned the 
responsibility of coordinating the financial operations ofthe Tmst. 

1.14 - Proportional Share. The term "Proportional Share" means the contributions 
attributed to the Participating Entity (including contributions made by or on behalf of 
Beneficiaries in the Tmst due to their affiliation with each respective Participating Entity as well 
as the Participating Entity's contributions on behalf of Employees) over the 12 months prior to 
termination divided by total contributions to the Tmst over the same 12 months. 

ARTICLE II - PURPOSE OF TRUST AND APPLICATION OF THE FUND 

2.01 - Fund. There is hereby declared and created the Yuma Area Benefit Consortium. 
The purpose of the Yuma Area Benefit Consortium is to establish a Tmst Fund to provide 
benefits for, but not limited or restricted to. Life, Accidental Death and Dismembennent, 
Disability, Basic or Major Medical coverage for accidents or sicknesses, dental, and any other 
benefits as determined by the Tmstees for Beneficiaries, provided such benefits are related to 
Health, Death or Disability, whether through self-funded or insured programs or both. The 
Tmstees shall have the power to enter into contracts, procure insurance policies, or provide such 
benefits through self-fonding and to place into effect and maintain the desirable benefits as set 
forth in the Plan Document. 

2.02 - Principal Office. The Tmst shall have its principal office at Arizona Westem 
College, P.O. Box 929, Yuma, Arizona 85366-0929 (hereinafter designated and referred to as 
"Principal Office"). The Tmstees may from time to time designate another location as the 
Principal Office ofthe Tmst. 

ARTICLE HI - TRUSTEES - APPOINTMENT, TERM AND REMOVAL 

3.01 - Appointment of Trustees. The Tmstees shall be appointed by the Participating 
Entities as provided herein and will serve at the pleasure of the Participating Entity which 
appointed them. A Tmstee may be reappointed at the Participating Entity's sole discretion. 

3.02 - Board of Trustees Composition. The number of members of the. Board of 
Tmstees shall be not less than four (4) nor more than twelve (12) of which at least three (3) 
persons shall be elected officials or employees of public entities within the State of Arizona. The 
Goveming Boards of Crane, Yuma, AWC, and the City each shall appoint two (2) tmstees. As 
ofthe effective date of this Agreement, the following individuals have been appointed to serve as 
tmstees: 

(1) Crane: Michael Wicks and Mike Jarvis 
(2) Yuma: Maureen Irr and Kerry Jones 
(3) AWC: Daniel Hann and Shane Turner 
(4) City: Mikeil (Mike) Callahan and Bob StuU. 

-* 

42



The Goveming Board of any governmental entity which becomes a Participating Entity 
after the effective date of this Agreement shall have such rights, if any, to appoint one or more 
Tmstees as the then serving Tmstees may determine. 

3.03 - Term and Removal. A Tmstee shall serve until he or she resigns or is removed. 
A Tmstee shall serve at the pleasure of the Goveming Board of the Participating Entity 
appointing such Tmstee and may be removed by such Goveming Board at any time, with or 
without cause. The removal of a Tmstee shall become immediately effective upon written 
notification by the Goveming Board of a Participating Entity to the appointed Trustee to be 
removed. A Tmstee may resign at any time by giving five (5) days written notice to the other 
Tmstees and the Goveming Board appointing said Tmstee. 

3.04 - Successor Trustees. Upon the resignation or removal of a Tmstee the Goveming 
Board of the Participating Entity that appointed such Tmstee shall appoint or select a successor 
Trustee. The successor Tmstee shall have the same powers and duties as those conferred upon 
the Tmstees hereunder. 

3.05 - Acceptance of Trusteeship. By signing this Tmst Agreement, the Tmstees hereby 
accept the Tmst and Tmsteeship and declare that they will receive and hold the Fund by virtue of 
this Tmst Agreement for the uses and purposes and with the powers and duties herein set forth 
and none other and keep adequate and proper records as set forth herein. 

ARTICLE IV - POWERS AND DUTIES OF TRUSTEES 

4.01 - General Powers ofthe Trustees. The Health and Welfare Program and Trust shall 
be administered by the Tmstees. The Tmstees shall hold, manage, care for and keep the Fund 
and collect the income and increments thereof, and shall keep and maintain adequate and proper 
records to render an annual audit, accounting and reports as hereinafter mentioned. The Tmstees 
shall employ or hire such agents, attomeys, accountants, actuaries, employees or other persons 
and lease premises and equipment as may be necessary or desirable in administering the Fund 
and carrying out its purposes and the fees, salaries, wages, emoluments or compensation of any 
and all such persons shall be paid from the Fund. The Tmstees may payany and all taxes of 
whatsoever nature the Fund is and may be obligated to pay, and incur any expenses for supplies, 
rental of space, or other items or anything else believed to be necessary or desirable in 
administering the Fund and carrying out the objectives and purposes of the Tmst and Tmst 
Agreement. Nothing herein is intended to and does not limit in any way the power of the 
Tmstees, it being the intent of this Agreement that the Tmstees shall have all right, power and 
authority to do all those things, which in the opinion of the Tmstees may be necessary or 
desirable for the administration and operation of and accomplishments of the objectives and 
purposes of the Fund and this Tmst and Tmst Agreement. The Tmstees shall have the power to 
adopt mles and regulations for the administration of the Fund and/or Tmst, which regulations 
and mles shall be consistent with covenants, terms, conditions, obligations and duties as set forth 
in this Tmst Agreement, and such mles and regulations shall be binding upon all persons dealing 
with the Fund and upon any and all persons claiming any benefits hereunder. The Trust may 
issue checks in its own name. 

43



4.02 - Benefits. The Tmstees, in carrying out the purposes of this Trust Agreement, shall 
have the power and the right to provide the intended benefits under this Tmst as set forth in the 
Plan Document by means of direct or self-funding by the Tioist and/or by the procurement of 
group insurance contracts (permissible under the laws of Arizona) including group insurance 
contracts issued to and in the name of the Tmst, together with such other fonns of contracts 
issued by qualified insurance companies authorized to do business in the State of Arizona as may 
be selected by the Tmstees for the purpose of providing for all or part of the benefits provided 
for in the Plan Document. The Tmstees are hereby expressly authorized to pay to any insurance 
company as may be selected by the Trustees the required premiums on the insurance contracts 
issued to the Tmst. Subject to Paragraph 4.03 below, whether or not benefits are provided by 
means of direct or self-funding shall be at the sole and exclusive discretion of the Tmstees. 
Should the Tmstees select or provide for any policy or any program of self-funding, no claims 
for benefits or liabilities shall be brought against the Tmstees or members of the Goveming 
Boards of Participating Entities. 

4.03 - Stop Loss. If the Tmstees choose to provide any self-funded benefits, the payment 
from the Fund of any and all benefits to or on behalf of each beneficiary shall be a minimum of 
$100,000 each fiscal year. The aggregate total of payments for all self-fimded benefits to or on 
behalf of all Employees shall be limited to an annual maximum calculated using an aggregate 
factor established through an aggregate stop-loss insurance policy. 

4.04 - Types of Employee Benefits. To Be Funded By The Tmst. The Tmstees may 
obtain for the Beneficiaries of the Tmst the following forms of employee benefits plus other 
benefits, provided such benefits are related to Health, Death or Disability: Accidental Death and 
Dismemberment Life Insurance Hospital, surgical and medical, dental, and other group health 
products customarily made available to employee groups. 

4.05 - Unexpended Corpus. All corpus or portions ofthe Fund not otherwise expended 
may be deposited by the Tmstees in the name of the Tmst in such depository or depositories as 
the Tmstees shall from time to time select, and any such deposit or deposits should carry or bear 
interest. The Tmstees are empowered to receive for the benefit ofthe Fund such interest as might 
accme on the above deposits. If not so deposited, any accumulated funds not currently required 
for the purposes of this Tmst shall be invested by the Tmstees in reasonably secure, reasonably 
liquid investments. 

The Tmstees may accumulate dividends or experience rating refunds or other monies, if 
any, accming from any insurance policy or policies, deposits or investments. Such dividends, 
refrinds or other monies, or all of them, shall be held in the Fund and applied to the payment of 
self-funded claims, the payment of insurance premiums, or held, used or applied as herein set 
forth. The Tmst may issue checks in its own name with written permission ofthe Yuma County 
treasurer. 

4.06 - Trustee Reimbursements. No Compensation. The Tmstees may receive 
reimbursement for actual reasonable expenses incurred, under such terms and conditions as may 
be approved by a majority of the Tmstees. Tmstees shall not receive compensation for their 
services rendered. 

44



4.07 - Recording Secretary. The Tmstees shall have a Recording Secretary who shall 
keep minutes of all meetings, proceedings, and acts of the Tmstees, which records shall be 
available at the Principal Office ofthe Tmst for inspection by all interested persons during usual 
business hours. Such records and minutes need not be verbatim. The Recording Secretary need 
not be a Tmstee. 

4.08 - Acts of Trustees. No person who is dealing with the Tmstees shall be obligated to 
see to the application of any monies or property ofthe Fund, or to see that the terms of this Tmst 
Agreement have been complied with or to inquire as to the necessity or expediency of any act of 
the Tmstees. Every instmment executed by the Tmstees or at their direction shall be conclusive 
in favor of every person who in good faith relies upon it, that (a) at the time ofthe delivery ofthe 
instrument this Tmst Agreement was in full force and effect; (b) the instmment was executed in 
accordance with the terms and conditions of this Tmst Agreement; and, (c) the Tmstees were 
duly authorized to execute the instmment or direct its execufion. 

4.09 - Meetings. The Tmstees shall hold their first meeting as soon as practical after 
being appointed. Thereafter, meetings shall be held on a regular basis sufficient to conduct the 
business ofthe Tmst. The Tmstees will hold all meetings in compliance with the Open Meeting 
Law of Arizona, A.R.S. Section 38-431 et seq. The Tmstees shall detennine the fime and place 
ofthe regular meetings. Special meetings ofthe Tmstees may be called by the Chairman or by a 
majority ofthe Tmstees. At least twenty-four (24) hours written notice shall be provided to the 
Tmstees of any meeting, including a copy ofthe meeting agenda. A majority of Tmstees present 
at any meeting shall constitute a quomm. 

4.10 - Accounting. The accounting year of the Fund shall be on a fiscal year basis, 
commencing on the first day of July and ending on the 30th day of June of the following year. 
Any report required by law. State or Federal, or the respective subdivisions thereof, shall be 
prepared or caused to be prepared by the Tmstees. The Tmstees shall have an annual audit and 
accounting ofthe Tmst Fund by a Certified Public Accountant ("CPA") in accordance with good 
accounfing practices, at the end of each fiscal year. The CPA shall certify to the accuracy of its 
audit and accounfing. A statement of the results of each audit shall be available for inspection by 
at the Principal Office of the Tmst. Copies of the audit and generalized statements of the 
accounfing and reports shall be delivered to the Tmstees after each audit and copies of the report 
will, be submitted to Governing Boards or chief executive officers of the Participating Entities 
and to the Director of Insurance. 

4.11 - Bonding Of Trustees. The Tmstees shall procure fidelity bonds for the benefit of 
the Tmst and covering persons authorized to receive, handle, deal with or draw upon the monies 
in the Fund for any purpose whatsoever, said bonds to be in such reasonable amount to 
reasonably aid in reimbursing bondable loss of money, and in any event shall meet the 
requirements as may be imposed, from fime to fime, by applicable law. Bonds are to be obtained 
from reputable fidelity or surety company or companies as the Tmstees shall determine. If 
convenient, and in conformity with law, such bonds may be position bonds. The cost of the 
premiums on such bonds shall be paid out of the corpus or income of the Fund. If any fidelity or 

45



*«R 

surety company refuses to bond or write a bond for any Trustee, or other person as described in 
this secfion, that Tmstee or person shall not serve and shall resign. 

4.12 - Benefits Claim Settlement and Appeals Board. The Tmstees may in their sole 
discrefion compromise or settie any disputed benefits claim or benefits claim controversy in such 
manner as they think best, and any decision made by the Tmstees in compromise or settlement of 
a disputed benefits claim or benefits claim controversy, or any compromise or settlement 
agreement entered into by the Tmstees shall be conclusive and binding upon all parties interested 
in this Fund. The Tmstees may establish an appeals board which may have the same powers and 
dufies of the Tmstees to settle benefits claims or benefits claims controversies. Should they 
decide to establish an appeals board, the Tmstees shall establish by resolution the membership, 
procedures, and duties ofthe appeals board and include the same in the Plan Document. 

4.13 - Discharge Duties With Care. The Tmstees agree to discharge their 
responsibilifies with the care, skill, pmdence and diligence under the circumstances then 
prevailing that a pmdent person acting in a like capacity and familiar with such matters would 
use in the conduct of an enterprise of a like character and with like aims, all in accordance with 
the provisions of this Tmst Agreement. Notwithstanding this duty, Trustees shall only be liable 
for claims, damages or other harm to the extent provided for in Section 4.14 below. 

4.14 - Indemnification and Insurance. A Tmstee shall not be responsible or liable for 
any claim, damages or other harm, unless and only to the extent that the claim, damages or harm 
is caused by the Tmstee's gross negligence, bad faith or willfial misconduct, including gross 
negligence, bad faith or willfiil misconduct in the handling of monies received for the Tmst's 
benefit and/or with respect to the execution and administration of the Fund or this Tmst 
Agreement. A Tmstee shall neither be responsible for acfions or omissions of successor Tmstees, 
nor for the actions or omissions of other agents, nor for actions or omissions of any insurance 
company or its agents, including, but not limited to, nonpayment of claims by an insurance 
company or companies for any reason. To the extent permitted by law, a Tmstee shall be entitled 
to indemnificafion from the Tmst, including court costs and attorneys' fees, for costs attributable 
to any claim of liability, or actual liability, unless such costs or liability arises from the Tmstee's 
willful misconduct, bad faith or gross negligence, in which case no indemnificafion" shall be 
available to the Tmstee. The Tmstees are specifically authorized to purchase errors and 
omissions nor other appropriate insurance coverage for the benefit ofthe Tmstees. 

4.15 - Power To Interpret Agreement. The Tmstees shall have the power to constme, 
interpret and apply the provisions of this Tmst Agreement or any amendments, mles or 
regulations adopted thereto, and the terms used herein and any constmcfion, interpretation or 
application adopted in good faith shall be final and binding upon the Participating Entities and 
the Beneficiaries, and their respecfive successors, assigns, executors, administrators, and/or legal 
representafives. 

ARTICLE V - PLAN DOCUMENT AND ADMINISTRATION OF THE PLAN 

5.01 - Benefits Set Forth In Plan Document. The benefits to be provided hereunder, 
whether by self-ftinding or insurance contract, shall be set forth in a Plan Document which shall 

46



also explain the eligibility mles for coverage for Beneficiaries, Beneficiaries have no rights to 
any claim to benefits under the Health and Welfare Program beyond those set forth in the Plan 
Document for which they are eligible. The Tmstees and Participating Entities will have no 
liability for failure to ftand or pay for benefits not provided for in the Plan Document. 

5.02 - Designation Of Third Party Administrator and Removal. The Tmstees shall 
have the fill obligation and responsibility for the general administration of the Health and 
Welfare Program but may designate any person, firm or corporation as its agent to act for it in 
administering the Health and Welfare Program. Such agent shall be known as the third party 
administrator. The third party administrator will provide day to day management of the Fund. 
The Tmstees may remove the third party administrator at any time without cause after thirty (30) 
days written nofice to the third party administrator. Areas of authority of the third party 
administrator will be delineated in the third party administrator's contract with the Tmst and any 
regulafions or mles established by the Tmstees. 

5.03 - Record Maintenance By Third Party Administrator. Any agent designated as 
the third party administrator ofthe Health and Welfare Program shall keep accurate and detailed 
records of its administration of the Health and Welfare Program which shall be open for 
examination at reasonable times during business hours by any person authorized in writing by 
the Tmstees. In addition, the third party administrator shall, within sixty (60) days after the end 
of each Tmst year or such other date as determined by the Tmstees, file with the Tmstees a 
complete statement ofthe administration ofthe Health and Welfare Program covering the period 
since the last statement. 

5.04 - Disputes. In the event there shall be any disagreement between the Tmstees and 
the third party administrator over exercise of powers granted herein or with respect to the 
interpretation of any regulations or mles established by the Tmstees, the Tmstees shall prevail, 
and the third party administrator shall have no liability to any person with respect to such act or 
omission in the event it shall give nofice in writing to the Tmstees and to the Participafing 
Enfities of its dissent from such act. 

5.05 - Authorization To Establish Office And Staff. The Tmstees may establish offices 
and employ necessary staff to carry out the provisions of this Tmst Agreement. 

5.06 - Authorization To Obtain Property. The Tmstees may purchase, lease or rent real 
and personal property deemed necessary or desirable to operate the Tmst. 

ARTICLE VI - CONTRIBUTIONS TO THE FUND 

6.01 - Member Contributions. In order to effectuate the purpose hereof, the 
Participating Entities shall contribute to the Fund an amount determined by the Tmstees and 
approved by the Participafing Entities to be necessary to pay for the benefits provided hereunder, 
which shall include but is not limited to costs incurred for claim payments; insurance contracts; 
administrative expenses and establishing of and maintenance of incurred but not reported claims 
reserves ("IBNR"). During the first year of this Agreement, a Participafing Entity may fiind for 
incurred but not reported claims and known incurred losses thro*^ a lump sum payment at the 

47



beginning ofthe plan year or through prorated payments during the first 12 months of this Tmst 
Agreement. The calculafion of the IBNR and known incurred losses will be calculated using 
recognized actuarial calculafion by a licensed actuarial and/or consulting finn. The Participafing 
Entity's contribution shall be due and payable as of the first day of the month or as otherwise 
detemiined by the Tmstees. 

6.02 - Assessment Of Participating Entities If Fund Is Determined To Be Insolvent 
Or Unable To Discharge Its Legal Liabilities; Limits of Liability For Trustees And 
Participating Members. If the Fund is determined to be insolvent or is otherwise found to be 
unable to discharge its legal liabilities and other obligafions, the Participating Entities shall be 
assessed on a pro rata basis (proportional share) as calculated by the amount of each 
Participating Entities' annual contribufion in order to satisfy the amount of deficiency. Not 
withstanding the above, the assessment shall not exceed the amount of each Participating Entity's 
annual contribution to the Fund. In either event, benefit payments to such Beneficiaries shall be 
limited to the amount in the Tmst Fund. In the event the assessment does not yield sufficient 
ftjnds to pay all outstanding claims, the Tmst's obligafion to pay claims shall be limited to the 
amount in the Tmst Fund after the assessment, and the Tmstees and Participafing Entities' shall 
have no frirther legal obligations of any type. In the event that submitted claims of Beneficiaries 
exceed the funds available, the claims shall be paid in the order received as determined by the 
Tmstees or by the third party administrator if so delegated by the Tmstees. 

6.03 - Participating Entities' Contributions Are Not Wages. To the extent permitted 
by law, the Participating Entifies' contribufions to be paid into the Fund shall not constitute or be 
deemed wages due to Employees, nor shall the Participating Entities' contributions in any 
manner be liable for or subject to the debts, contracts, or Iiabilifies ofthe Participating Entities. 
Neither the Participating Enfities, any Employee, nor any Beneficiary under the Plan shall have 
any rights, tifie, or interest in the Fund, except as otherwise specifically provided herein. 

6.04 - Employee Contributions. Employees may be required to contribute to the Fund 
the amount determined by the Participating Entity, to be appropriate for the benefits to be 
provided hereunder. All Employees' contributions shall be due and payable as of the first day of 
the month or as otherwise determined by the Tmstees. 

6.05 - Payment In Lieu Of Benefits. No Employee or other Beneficiary shall have any 
right to receive any part of his/her own or the Participating Entifies' contributions paid to him/her 
in lieu of benefits. 

6.06 - Payroll Deductions. All Employees' contribufions shall be paid by payroll 
deduction, by salary reduction, or as otherwise required by the Tmstees. The Participafing Entity 
shall remit all monies obtained in a lump sum to the Fund at least once per month or as otherwise 
specified by the Tmstees. 

6.07 - Payment. AH contributions shall be payable to the name ofthe Tmst, and shall be 
paid in the manner and fonn determined by the Tmstees. 

48



6.08 - Reports. The Participating Enfifies shall make all reports required by the Tmst in 
order that the Tmstees can carry out their obligations under the Tmst Agreement. The Tmstees 
may at any time have an audit made by an independent Certified Public Accountant ofthe wage 
records ofthe Participating Entities in connection with their contribution and/or reports. 

6.09 - Irrevocability of Contribution. Subject to the provisions providing for 
termination of this Trust Agreement, all contributions to the Fund shall be irrevocable, and under 
no circumstances shall any monies properly paid into the Fund, or any part of the Fund, be 
recoverable by or payable to the Participafing Enfifies or any Beneficiary, nor shall any of the 
same be used for or diverted to purposes other than for the exclusive program of benefits for 
Beneficiaries provided hereunder. 

6.10 - Trustees' Responsibility For Contributions. Subject to the Hmitafions stated in 
this section, and notwithstanding any other provisions of this Tmst Agreement, each Tmstee 
shall be responsible for monies only when and after such monies are received by the Tmst 
pursuant to this Tmst Agreement. 

ARTICLE VII - PAYMENT OF BENEFITS 

7.01 - Method Of Payment. The Tmstees may arrange for the disbursement of benefits 
under the Plan Document. Benefit payment determinations may be made by a third party 
administrator appointed by the Tmstees. 

7.02 - Protection Of Employees. Prior to payment to any Beneficiary, all assets ofthe 
Tmst shall be owned by the Tmst and shall not be liable in any way for any debt or obligation of 
any Beneficiary. To the extent permitted by law, all Trust benefits shall be exempt from 
attachment, gamishment, levy of execution, bankmptcy proceedings, or other legal process; and, 
in any event, such assets shall be subject to such process only to the extent of such Beneficiary's 
benefits hereunder as they fall due. 

7.03 - Claim To Benefits. Beneficiaries will have no rights to any claim to benefits 
beyond those set forth in the Plan Document for which they are eligible. The Tmstees and 
Participating Members will have no liability for failure to fiind or pay for benefits not otherwise 
provided for in the Plan Document. 

ARTICLE VIII - NONVESTING OF RIGHTS 

8.01 - Rights. No Employee, Beneficiary, nor any other person or group or their 
respective successors, assigns or legal representatives shall have any right, title or interest, vested 
or otherwise, in or to the Fund, Tmst, corpus income or increments thereto, insurance dividends, 
cash value, if any, or insurance or benefits or monies payable therefrom, payments from the 
Fund, or in or to the eligibility requirements for the benefits as changed or altered. Any 
participating Beneficiary who withdraws or ceases to participate in the Program does hereby and 
shall expressly waive and forfeit any right, title or interest in and to the Fund, its corpus and 
assets. No Employee, Beneficiary, or any other person or group or other respecfive successors, 
assigns or legal representatives shall have any rights in or to the Trust, Fund, corpus, insurance. 

10 49



dividends, cash value, if any, of insurance, income, benefits, or any benefits or money payable 
therefrom, or anything arising out or in this Tmst during the term of this Tmst Agreement and 
any benefits he or they may have is forever terminated and discharged upon the Employee's loss 
of employment with the Participafing Enfity (quitfing or discharge), subject to COBRA rights 
pursuant to 42 USCA §300bb-l, or when this Tmst Agreement is terminated, wound up, and 
dissolved. No benefit, right or interest, if any of the foregoing, is transferable or assignable by 
the Employee to another Employee or person, corporate or otherwise, except to physicians, 
hospitals and any other person, or insfitufions fumishing medical services within the terms of this 
Tmst Agreement. No monies, property, or equity, of whatsoever nature, in the Fund, nor 
insurance policies nor benefits nor monies payable therefrom, nor investments, nor deposits nor 
any part or portion of the Fund, shall be subject in any manner by an Employee, or other 
Beneficiary or person claiming through such Employee or Beneficiary, to ownership, 
anticipafion, alienation, sale, transfer, assignment, pledge, encumbrance, gamishment, 
attachment, execufion, mortgage, fien or charge of whatsoever name or kind, and any attempt to 
cause the same is and shall be null and void. 

ARTICLE IX - PROSPECTIVE MEMBERS 

9.01 - Petition For Membership. A governmental unit desiring membership in the Tmst 
("Prospecfive Member") may pefition the Tmstees to join by completing an application form 
available at the principal office of the Tmst. The deadline to submit an application for 
membership in the Tmst shall not be less than three months prior to the proposed effecfive date 
for membership. A fee, as determined by the Trustees, will be charged for the applicafion 
process. The Tmstees, in a meeting, may through a majority vote after approval by all 
Participafing Enfifies extend an invitation for membership to the Prospective Member, subject to 
payment of the contribution required, in an amount according to the formula as determined by 
the Tmstees. Upon acceptance ofthe invitation, the Prospective Members shall pay the Tmst the 
formulated contribution for the purpose of establishing IBNR Tmst reserves. This payment may 
be in the form of a lump sum payment prior to the effective date of coverage or the first payment 
of a prorated schedule of payments during the first 12 months of participafion. The Tmstees 
shall determine the terms upon which a Prospective Member shall be admitted as a Participating 
Entity, including, but not limited to, whether or not such Prospecfive Member shall have the right 
to appoint one or more Tmstees as provided in Article HI if the Prospective Member is admitted 
as a Participating Enfity. Upon receipt ofthe lump sum or first ofthe 12 prorated payments and 
the compliance by the Prospective Member with such other terms as the Tmstees may establish, 
the Prospective Member shall be deemed a Participafing Entity with such rights and obligafions 
of a Participafing Entity as the Tmst and the Prospective Member may have agreed upon. 
Representafives of the Prospecfive Member may attend meetings but shall not be allowed to 
vote. : 

ARTICLE X - TERMINATION OF A PARTICIPATING ENTITY 

10.01 - Voluntary (Without Cause) Termination, If an individual Participating Entity 
desires to terminate its membership in the Tmst, the following provisions must be met; 

"m 

11 50



1. The Tmstees must receive written nofificafion of intent to terminate 
membership 12 months prior to the end ofthe plan year in which terminafion is desired 
(e.g. provide written nofice prior to July 1, 1998 to be able to tenninate on June 30, 
1999); and, 

2. Termination would become effective at the end ofthe plan year following 
the required twelve (12) month nofice period (e.g. if written nofice received prior to July 
1, 1998, Participating Enfity would terminate participafion on June 30, 1999). 

3. Once termination is effective, a former Participating Entity may not apply 
for readmission to the Trust for a minimum of three plan years. 

10.02 - Involuntary Termination (For Cause). In the event a Participating Enfity fails 
to make any required contribution of funds, or fails to comply with any of the other terms of this 
Tmst Agreement, the Tmstees may, if such default is not cured within thirty (30) days' after 
receipt of written nofice, suspend the Participating Entity's Beneficiaries' coverage either in 
whole or in part for a period of up to ninety (90) days without further action. The written notice 
shall inform the Participafing Enfity that the suspension may be made permanent effecfive ninety 
(90) days after the date ofthe notice. During such suspension period, the Tmstees shall either (i) 
determine that the suspension shall be made permanent, in which case this Agreement shall be 
deemed terminated effecfively ninety (90) days after the date of the written nofice of suspension, 
or (ii) determine the circumstances, if any, under which the Participafing Enfity's participation in 
the Tmst and coverage may be restored. Should the Participafing Entity be permanently 
suspended and this Agreement terminated, the Participating Enfity shall forfeit all rights to any 
distribufion of surplus, contributions or other distributions from or assets of the Tmst. In the 
event of such terminafion, the Participafing Enfity shall be relieved of any liability for ordinary 
contributions for fiscal years after the fiscal year of the Participafing Entity's involuntary 
termination. Further, the Participating Entity's liability for additional assessments will continue if 
the Tmst becomes insolvent or is otherwise found to be unable to discharge its legal liabilities 
and other obligafions as determined in good faith by the Tmstees, through the end of the fiscal 
year during which the Participating Entity was terminated. 

10.03 - Incurred But Not Reported Claims Liability On Termination. A terminafing 
Participating Entity, either upon voluntary tennination or upon involuntary termination, shall be 
responsible for its Proportional Share of claims mn-out which exceeds Tmst Fund Reserves 
established for the incurred but not reported claims liability. A "proportional share" is defined as 
the contribufions attributed to the Participating Enfity (including contributions made by or on 
behalf of Beneficiaries in the Tmst due to their affiliation with the Participating Entity as well as 
the Participating Entity's contribufions on behalf of Beneficiaries) over the 12 months prior to 
termination divided by total contribufions to the Tmst over the same 12 months. In the event 
Tmst Fund reserves exceed claims mn-out, an amount equal to 75% of a Proportional Share of 
such reserves will be returned to the former Participating Enfity as set forth in 10.04. 

10.04 - Final Accounting. Twelve (12) months after terminafion of any Participating 
Entity, whether it be voluntary or involuntary, a final accounfing will be made ofthe incurred but 
not reported claims reserve in a manner set forth by the Tmstees in its mles and regulafions. In 

12 
51



the event of reserve excesses or deficit, as reflected in the Final Accounfing, the balance shall be 
setfied pursuant to Secfion 10.03 above - (1) a terminafing Participafing Enfity shall be 
responsible for its Proportional Share of claims mn-out which exceeds Tmst Fund Reserves 
established for the incurred but not reported claims liability and (2) a terminating Participating 
Entity will receive an amount equal to 75 % of its proportional share of Tmst Fund reserves in 
the event of an excess. Any deficit owed by the terminafing Participafing Enfity, or any excess 
owed by the Trust to the terminating Participating Entity, shall be paid within 60 days of release 
and receipt ofthe final accounfing. 

ARTICLE XI - TERMINATION OF TRUST 

11.01 - Termination by Participating Entities. This Tmst may be terminated by 
resolufions executed by a majority of the Participafing Entities' goveming bodies. An instmment 
in writing duly executed by a majority ofthe Participafing Enfifies shall give the Tmstees ninety 
(90) days written notice of the effective date of tennination. If the Tmst is in a deficit position 
upon tennination, including the claims lag as determined by the Tmstees, each Participating 
Enfity will share in the liability ofthe Tmst, subject to the limitafions as set forth in Section 6.02 
above, unfil the Tmsts business has been wound up. 

11.02 - Continue Until Completion. The Tmst shall continue until terminated as 
provided herein. Upon termination of the Tmst by the Participating Enfities, each Participating 
Entity shall be responsible to notify all Beneficiaries affiliated with it and any other interested 
parties, of the decision to terminate and its effective date. Any deficit shall be paid by the 
Participating Entities on a proportional basis as set forth in 6.02. Notwithstanding any provisions 
herein conceming the duration and termination of this Tmst, the Tmst shall continue in existence 
for so long a period as may be necessary to complete its affairs. Upon final termination of this 
Tmst, after payment of unpaid claims and/or insurance premiums and other expenses and 
obligations ofthe Tmst, each Participafing Enfity who was a member at the time ofthe decision 
to terminate, shall be paid its Proportional Share (as defined in 10.03) of any balance in the Fund. 

11.03 - Final Accounting. At such time as the Tmst is terminated, the Tmstees shall 
render a final accounting of the affairs of the Tmst and the Tmst Fund to the Participating 
Enfities, and thereafter there shall be no claim or acfion against the Trustees and they shall have 
no fiirther responsibility or duties and shall be discharged. Notwithstanding the above, no 
Tmstee shall be released or discharged for any malfeasance or wrongful conduct while in office. 

ARTICLE XII - MISCELLANEOUS 

12.01 - Power To Amend Rests With Participating Entities. It is anticipated that 
condifions may arise that are not foreseen at the fime of execution of this Tmst Agreement. It is 
the intention ofthe Participating Enfities and'the Tmstees that the power of amendment which is 
herein granted to the Participafing Entities be exercised in order to carry out the spirit, objectives, 
and purposes of this Tmst. Any Amendment shall be binding upon the parties to this Tmst 
Agreement upon approval of the Goveming Boards of each Participating Enfity. Any such 
Amendment shall be signed by all Participafing Entities and each Tmstee. 

13 52



12.02 - Workers' Compensation. The insurance coverage contemplated by this. 
Agreement shall not apply in any case which is compensable under Workers' Compensafion 
Laws. 

12.03 - Insurance Companies Not Parties To Trust Agreement. No insurance 
company which may issue any policies or contracts for the purpose of fijlfilling the terms of this 
Agreement shall be deemed to be a party to this Tmst Agreement, nor shall it be responsible for 
the validity of this Tmst Agreement, nor is this Tmst Agreement established in any manner for 
the benefit ofthe insurance company or companies. No insurance company shall be required to 
look into the terms of this Agreement, or to question the authority of or acfion ofthe Tmstees, or 
be responsible to verify that any action of the Tmstees is authorized by the terms of this 
Agreement. 

12.04 - Applicable Law. Each Participafing Enfity shall comply with all applicable 
federal and state statutes and regulations, including all applicable legal requirements relating to 
civil rights and non-discrimination in employment. The County of Yuma, State of Arizona, shall 
be deemed the situs of the Fund created hereunder. All quesfions pertaining to validity, 
constmction and administrafion shall be determined in accordance with the laws of the State of 
Arizona. This Agreement is deemed, made, executed and delivered in Arizona. 

12.05 - Construction. Wherever any words are used in this Agreement in the masculine 
gender, they shall be constmed as though they were also in the feminine or neuter gender in all 
situations where they would so apply, and wherever any words in this Agreement are in the 
singular form, they shall be constmed as though they were also used in the plural form in all 
situations where they would so apply, and wherever any words are used in this Agreement and 
Declaration of Tmst in the plural form they shall be constmed as though they were also used in 
the singular form in all situafions where they would so apply. 

12.06 - Severability. Should any provision or term in this Agreement be deemed or held 
to be unlawfiil or invalid for any reason, such fact shall not adversely affect the provisions herein 
contained unless such illegality shall make impossible or impracfical the functioning ofthe Tmst. 
In such case the appropriate parties shall immediately adopt a new provision to take the place of 
the illegal or invalid provision. 

12.07 - Clarification of Captions. It is understood and agreed that the capfions headings 
are for convenience only and are not and shall not be a part of this Agreement and in no manner 
whatsoever define, limit, or expand any ofthe terms, obligations or conditions hereof 

12.08 - Cancellation. This Agreement is subject to canccllafion pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-
511. 

12.09 - Counterpart Execution. This Agreement may be executed in mulfiple 
counterparts, each of which shall be deemed to be an original, but all of which taken together 
shall consfitute one and the same agreement. 

14 
53



SIGNATURES OF PARTICIPATING ENTITIES OR AUTHORIZED DESIGNEE: 

By: 

By: 

By: 

By: 

Goveming Board President or authorized designee 
for Arizona Westem College 

Print Name 

Signed this day of [ , 200 

Goveming Board President or authorized designee 
for Crane Elementary School District No. 13 

Print Name 

Signed this day of , 200_ 

Goveming Board President or authorized designee 
for Yuma Elementary School District No. One 

Print Name 

Signed this day of , 200_ 

Mayor orauthori zed designee for City of Yuma 

Print Name 

Signed this ^o day of < 2 g ^ . 200 C 

>̂  

15 54



SIGNATURE OF TRUSTEES: 

By: 
Daniel D. Hann 
Tmstee for Arizona Westem College 

Signed this day of , 200 

By: 
Shane Tumer 
Tmstee for Arizona Westem College 

Signed this day of , 200_ 

By: 
Michael Wicks 
Tmstee for Crane Elementary School District No. 13 

Signed this day of , 200 

By: 
Mike Jarvis 
Tmstee for Crane Elementary School District No. 13 

Signed this day of , 200 

By: 
Maureen ITT 
Tmstee for Yuma Elementary School District No. One 

Signed this day of , 200 

16 

55



By: 
Kerry Jones 
Tmstee for Yuma Elementary School District No. One 

Signed this day of , 2 0 0 _ 

By: 

Tmstee for City of Yuma 

Signed this / j ^ ^ day of J/. '^^^r.^ , 2 0 0 ^ ( i ^ t ^ 

-•'1 / I 

By: _^-.^i^:A\:::f^lt^C, 
Bob Stull 
Tmstee for City of Yuma 

Signed this / / day of ^^ . - ^^ .y 200^^ 

Pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D), the foregoing agreement has been reviewed by the undersigned 
and it is in proper from and is within the powers and authority granted under the laws ofthe State 
of Arizona. 

By: 

By: 

By: 

Legal Counsel for Arizona Westem College 

Signed this day of , 2 0 0 _ 

Legal Counsel for Crane Elementary School District No. 13 

Signed this day of , 2 0 0 _ 

Legal Counsel for Yuma Elementary School District No. One 

Signed this day of , 2 0 0 _ 

By: ^ i i L J - H . ^ ' > ^ . Legal Counsel vfor City of Yuma 

Signed this __JX_ day of .^O.^itXM 7 , 2004_ 

I;\FILES\DOCS\YUMA04\2l0378\DOC\EO2290.DOC 
• ^ 

17 
56



_____________________________________________________________________________ 
Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Board Of Directors 

Bill Lee, Chairman - City of Somerton, Susan Thorpe, Vice Chairman – Yuma County, Larry Killman  – 
Sec/Treasurer – Town of Wellton, Greg Wilkinson – City of Yuma, Brian Golding, Sr.-Quechan Tribe,  

Dr.  Michael Sabath - Northern Arizona University, Dr. Daniel Corr - Arizona Western College,  
Ralph Velez - City of San Luis, Paul Soto – Cocopah Tribe  

Shelly Kreger, Transit Director 

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority 
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

2715 East 14th Street, Yuma, AZ 85365-1900, Telephone: 928-539-7076 
Fax: 928-783-0309, email: info@ycipta.az.gov, Web: www.ycipta.az.gov  

September 25, 2017 

Discussion and Action Item 5 

To: Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority  
Board of Directors 

From: Shelly Kreger, Transit Director 
Subject: Discussion and or action regarding the Third Amendment to the 

Independent Contractors Agreement for Transit Advertising Services. 
__________________________________________________________________ 

Requested Action: Staff recommends that the Yuma County Intergovernmental 
Public Transportation Authority (YCIPTA) Board of Directors approve the Third 
Amendment to the Independent Contractors Agreement for Transit Advertising 
Services 

Background and Summary:  YCIPTA and All Access Media entered into the 
Agreement for transit advertising services in Yuma County with a base term 
beginning on April 1, 2012 and expiring on June 30, 2015, and up to two (2), one 
(1) year extensions through June 30, 2016 and June 30, 2017.  The two (2)
extensions where executed.  YCIPTA desires to continue the contract for one more
additional year ending June 30, 2018.  Before the end of this renewal, staff will be
preparing a new advertising RFP for transit advertising services.

Recommended Motion: That the Yuma County Intergovernmental Public 
Transportation Authority Board of Directors vote to approve the Third Amendment 
to the Independent Contractors Agreement for Transit Advertising Services 

Fiscal Impact:  None. 

Legal Counsel Review: Yes 

Attachments:  Third Amendment to the Independent Contractors Agreement for 
Transit Advertising Services 

57

mailto:info@ycipta.az.gov
http://www.ycipta.az.gov/


_____________________________________________________________________________ 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Board Of Directors 
Bill Lee, Chairman - City of Somerton, Susan Thorpe, Vice Chairman – Yuma County, Larry Killman  – 
Sec/Treasurer – Town of Wellton, Greg Wilkinson – City of Yuma, Brian Golding, Sr.-Quechan Tribe,  

Dr.  Michael Sabath - Northern Arizona University, Dr. Daniel Corr - Arizona Western College,  
Ralph Velez - City of San Luis, Paul Soto – Cocopah Tribe  

Shelly Kreger, Transit Director 

For information on this staff report, please contact Shelly Kreger, Transit Director 
via email at skreger@ycipta.az.gov or call 928-539-7076, extension 101. 

Approved for Submission 

Shelly Kreger 
Transit Director 

58



YCIPTA/All Access Media Productions THIRD AMENDMENT: Page 1 

THIRD AMENDMENT TO INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT 

FOR TRANSIT ADVERTISING SERVICES 

The Independent Contractor Agreement entered into by and between the YUMA 

COUNTY INTERGOVERNMENTAL PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY, a 

political subdivision of the State of Arizona (“YCIPTA") and All Access Media Productions 

("Contractor"), dated March 26, 2012, (the “Agreement”), is hereby amended as follows: 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS,  YCIPTA and Contractor entered into the Agreement for transit advertising 

services in Yuma County with a base term beginning on April 1, 2012 and expiring on June 30, 

2015, and up to two (2), one (1) year extensions through June 30, 2016 and June 30, 2017, as 

mutually agreed between the parties;  

WHEREAS, the term of the Agreement was extended pursuant to the First Amendment 

entered into between the parties to be effective as of July 1, 2015, and the Second Amendment 

entered into between the parties to be effective as of July 1, 2016; 

WHEREAS, Contractor has been providing transit advertising services to YCIPTA 

throughout the base and extended terms pursuant to the terms of the Agreement; 

WHEREAS, YCIPTA has determined that the independent contractor relationship with 

Contractor for transit advertising services may continue based upon the availability of funding, 

and as such, YCIPTA’s Board of Directors authorized an amendment to continue the Agreement 

for one (1) year; and 

WHEREAS, YCIPTA and Contractor have mutually agreed to continue the Agreement 

for one (1) year. 

NOW THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency 

of which is hereby acknowledged, the parties hereby agree as follows: 

1. Amendment.  The following Section Five is deleted in its entirety and replaced with the

following: 

SECTION FIVE - TERM 

The Term of this Agreement shall begin July 1, 2017, and end one (1) year later on June 

30, 2018.  

2. Other Terms and Conditions.

A. This amendment supersedes all oral negotiations and prior and contemporaneous

writings with respect to the subject matter hereof and is intended by the parties as the

final expression of the Agreement with respect to the terms and conditions set forth

59



YCIPTA/All Access Media Productions THIRD AMENDMENT: Page 2 

herein and as the complete and exclusive statement of the terms agreed to by the 

parties.  If there is any conflict between the terms, conditions and provisions of this 

amendment and those of any other agreement or instrument, the terms, conditions and 

provisions of this amendment shall prevail. 

B. Except as expressly modified, amended or supplemented herein, all other terms and

covenants set forth in the Agreement, shall remain the same, shall be in full force and

effect, and are hereby reaffirmed and ratified by the parties in their entirety.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Third Amendment to 

Independent Contractor Agreement for Transit Advertising Services to be executed through the 

parties’ representatives as of the dates indicated below. 

YUMA COUNTY INTERGOVERNMENTAL 

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 

____________________________________ 

By:  Shelly Kreger Date 

Its:  Transit Director  

ALL ACCESS MEDIA PRODUCTIONS 

____________________________________ 

By:  Elisa C. Velasco  Date 

Its:  Owner 

60



_____________________________________________________________________________ 
Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Board Of Directors 

Bill Lee, Chairman - City of Somerton, Susan Thorpe, Vice Chairman – Yuma County, Larry Killman  – 
Sec/Treasurer – Town of Wellton, Greg Wilkinson – City of Yuma, Brian Golding, Sr.-Quechan Tribe,  

Dr.  Michael Sabath - Northern Arizona University, Dr. Daniel Corr - Arizona Western College,  
Ralph Velez - City of San Luis, Paul Soto – Cocopah Tribe  

Shelly Kreger, Transit Director 

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority 
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

2715 East 14th Street, Yuma, AZ 85365-1900, Telephone: 928-539-7076 
Fax: 928-783-0309, email: info@ycipta.az.gov, Web: www.ycipta.az.gov  

September 25, 2017 

Discussion and Action Item 6 

To:  Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority 
Board of Directors 

From:  Shelly Kreger, Transit Director 
Subject: Discussion and or action regarding the First Amendment to 

Agreement for the Provision of General Public Fixed-Route and 
Demand Response Services. 

__________________________________________________________________ 

Requested Action: Staff recommends that the Yuma County Intergovernmental 
Public Transportation Authority (YCIPTA) Board of Directors approve First 
Amendment to Agreement for the Provision of General Public Fixed-Route and 
Demand Response Services 

Background and Summary:  On August 18, 2014 YCIPTA and National Express 
Transit Services Corporation (NEXT) entered into an agreement to provide 
General Public Fixed Route and Demand Response Services.  The contract term 
was for three (3) initial years with seven (7) one (1) year extensions.  YCIPTA 
desires to continue the contract with NEXT by executing the first one (1) year 
option ending June 30, 2018.  There will be six (6) one (1) year remaining options 
on the contract.  

Staff has requested several sections of the contract be amended including 
removing the cap on liquidated damages, additional key performance indicators, 
maintenance and key personnel, accident reporting and NEXT providing the 
Demand Response service beginning July 1, 2017. 

Recommended Motion: That the Yuma County Intergovernmental Public 
Transportation Authority Board of Directors vote to approve the First Amendment 
to Agreement for the Provision of General Public Fixed-Route and Demand 
Response Services 

61

mailto:info@ycipta.az.gov
http://www.ycipta.az.gov/


_____________________________________________________________________________ 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Board Of Directors 
Bill Lee, Chairman - City of Somerton, Susan Thorpe, Vice Chairman – Yuma County, Larry Killman  – 
Sec/Treasurer – Town of Wellton, Greg Wilkinson – City of Yuma, Brian Golding, Sr.-Quechan Tribe,  

Dr.  Michael Sabath - Northern Arizona University, Dr. Daniel Corr - Arizona Western College,  
Ralph Velez - City of San Luis, Paul Soto – Cocopah Tribe  

 
Shelly Kreger, Transit Director 

 
 

 
Fiscal Impact:  Included in current budget. 
 
Legal Counsel Review: Yes 
 
Attachments:  First Amendment to Agreement for the Provision of General Public 
Fixed-Route and Demand Response Services, Exhibit A and Original Agreement. 
 
For information on this staff report, please contact Shelly Kreger, Transit Director 
via email at skreger@ycipta.az.gov or call 928-539-7076, extension 101. 
 
Approved for Submission 

  
Shelly Kreger 
Transit Director 
 
 

62



 

1 
 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT FOR THE PROVISION OF GENERAL 
PUBLIC FIXED-ROUTE AND DEMAND RESPONSE SERVICES 

 
This First Amendment to Agreement for the Provision of General Public Fixed-Route and 

Demand Response Services (“Amendment”), made and entered into September 1, 2017 
(“Effective Date”), is by and between Yuma County Intergovernmental Public 
Transportation Authority, a political subdivision of the State of Arizona (“YCIPTA”), and 
National Express Transit Services Corporation, a Delaware corporation (“CONTRACTOR”).   
 

WITNESSETH: 
 

WHEREAS, YCIPTA and CONTRACTOR are parties to that certain Agreement for the 
Provision of General Public Fixed-Route and Demand Response Services, dated on or about 
August 1, 2014 (“Agreement”); 
 

WHEREAS, YCIPTA and CONTRACTOR desire to extend the Contract Term of the 
Agreement pursuant to Section 4(B) of the Agreement and otherwise amend the Agreement 
subject to the terms and conditions of this Amendment; 

 
WHEREAS, YCIPTA is in need of the services of transportation services for persons 

with disabilities that meet the criteria for using Americans with Disabilities Act (“ADA”) 
paratransit service as part of the One Call-One Click Mobility Management Center called SARA 
Rides, and CONTRACTOR is willing and able to provide these services, and as of July 1, 2017, 
CONTRACTOR has been providing these services; and 

 
WHEREAS, YCIPTA and CONTRACTOR desire to amend the Agreement accordingly 

by entering into this Amendment pursuant to Section 57 of the Agreement. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency 

of which are hereby acknowledged, and the mutual promises hereinafter given, YCIPTA and 
CONTRACTOR agree as follows: 
 

1. Capitalized terms used herein and not otherwise defined in this Amendment are used with 
the same respective meanings attributed thereto in the Agreement. 
 

2. The Contract Term of the Agreement is hereby extended such that it shall expire at 11:59 
p.m. on June 30, 2018. 

 
3. All references throughout the Agreement for the SARA Contractor are hereby deleted 

and CONTRACTOR shall perform OnCall services that were previously performed by 
Saguaro Transportation Services for the extended Contract Term in accordance with the 
terms of the Agreement. 

 
4. The last sentence of Section 1(M)(2) Demand Response Service is hereby deleted and 

replaced with the following: “CONTRACTOR shall not be paid for the following, and 
such time shall be subtracted from the Revenue Hours: i) bus operator breaks; ii) lunch 

63



 

2 
 

periods; and iii) idle vehicle time when the bus operator is off the vehicle more than 30 
minutes.” 

 
5. In Section 8(D), the words, “if applicable,” are hereby inserted after “(AWC)”. 

 
6. A new Section 8(E) shall be inserted, causing the subsequent subsections to be re-

lettered, as follows:  
 

“E.  Maintenance Personnel:  CONTRACTOR shall employ four (4) full time 
maintenance personnel to provide the services under this Agreement and in accordance 
with Appendix A, Section G(1)(d), and CONTRACTOR shall bill YCIPTA under a 
separate invoice for the fourth (4th) maintenance personnel.  YCIPTA reserves the right to 
request additional maintenance personnel to be provided and paid for by CONTRACTOR 
on an as needed basis, billed in accordance with pay equivalent to other mechanics.” 

 
7. Section 48 of the Agreement is revised as follows: 

 
i. The seventh (7th) sentence in Section 48 is hereby deleted and replaced with the 

following: “YCIPTA shall deduct liquidated damages from CONTRACTOR’s 
monthly invoice.” 

ii. The eighth (8th) sentence in Section 48 is hereby deleted in its entirety. 
 

8. The following amendments are made to Appendix A of the Agreement: 
 

i. In Section A(2), the requirement for farebox revenue being counted while at least 
two CONTRACTOR employees are present is hereby revised to require that 
farebox revenue must be counted by a CONTRACTOR employee. 

ii. In Section A(7)(f), the reference to “CONTRACTOR” is hereby deleted and 
replaced with “YCIPTA”. 

iii. In Section C(17)(a), the words “and wax, with solutions pre-approved by 
YCIPTA” are hereby inserted after the word “Wash”. 

iv. In Section G(1), a new subsection (d) is hereby inserted as follows: 
 
“d.  In addition to those minimum qualifications listed in G(1)(b), maintenance 
personnel shall be required to possess the following minimum qualifications: 
 
1) Maintenance personnel shall include two (2) or more Class “A” Technicians 

and two (2) or more Class “B” Technicians as defined below.  “C” 
Technicians may fill a “B” Technician position for a period of no more than 
six (6) months with a written employee development plan. 

2) Class “A” Technician: 
a) Purpose of Position – Makes diagnostic tests and repairs on or to any 

vehicles assigned to the transit property in a reasonable time with 
minimal or no supervision or assistance. 

b) Primary Job Functions – Performs diagnostic tests on all assigned 
vehicles and equipment; performs skilled Preventive Maintenance 

64



 

3 
 

Service; services and/or repairs all assigned transit vehicles, 
automobiles, and miscellaneous light and heavy mechanical 
equipment; and performs other duties as required. 

c) Certified in both 608 and 609 A/C repairs. 
d) Documented experience in the repair and maintenance of all types of 

automotive and transit equipment or an equivalent combination of 
training and experience. 

e) Good knowledge of the repair, maintenance, and modifications of light 
and heavy gasoline and diesel powered equipment, including transit 
vehicles. 

f) Ability to use all types of vehicle mechanic equipment and tools 
effectively and safely. 

g) Familiar with use of repair manuals and parts books. 
3) Class “B” Technician: 

a) Purpose of Position – Makes diagnostic tests and repairs on or to most 
vehicles assigned to the transit property in a reasonable time with 
moderate assistance and guidance. 

b) Primary Job Functions – Performs diagnostic tests on all assigned 
vehicles and equipment; performs skilled Preventive Maintenance 
Service; services and/or repairs all assigned transit vehicles, 
automobiles, and miscellaneous light and heavy mechanical 
equipment; and performs other duties as required. 

c) Certified in both 608 and 609 A/C repairs. 
d) Documented experience in the repair and maintenance of all types of 

automotive and transit equipment or an equivalent combination of 
training and experience. 

e) Good knowledge of the repair, maintenance, and modifications of light 
and heavy gasoline and diesel powered equipment, including transit 
vehicles. 

f) Ability to use most types of vehicle mechanic equipment and tools 
effectively and safely. 

g) Familiar with use of repair manuals and parts books. 
4) Class “C” Technician: 

a) Purpose of Position – An entry level position for trade school 
graduates and individuals that show general mechanical aptitude that 
will allow them to learn and practice diagnostic tests and repairs on or 
to most vehicles assigned to the transit property in a reasonable time 
with assistance from the manager or other class mechanics assistance 
and guidance. 

b) Primary Job Functions – Learns and performs diagnostic tests on 
assigned vehicles and equipment; learns and performs skilled 
Preventive Maintenance Service; and with supervision, services and/or 
repairs all assigned transit vehicles, automobiles, and miscellaneous 
light and heavy mechanical equipment. 

c) Ability to be certified in both 608 and 609 A/C repairs. 
d) Graduate from a trade school or displays mechanical aptitude. 

65



 

4 
 

e) Understands the safe use of shop tools and equipment. 
5) All maintenance personnel classified in any of the above shall also possess the 

following: 
a) Essential Knowledge and Skills 
b) High school graduate or its equivalent.  
c) Must possess a Commercial Driver’s License or the ability to obtain 

one. 
d) Must be able to pass an employment physical examination (pre-

employment or renewal) including a substance abuse screening. 
e) Clean driving record.” 

 
9. The following amendments are made to Appendix E of the Agreement: 

 
i. Page II-133 of Appendix E, Row 1, Column 2, is hereby revised to require that 

the standard for reporting all accidents is immediately, and in no event more than 
one (1) hour after the accident. 

ii. Page II-133 of Appendix E, Row 2, Column 4, is hereby revised to insert the 
following language: “In the event that a key personnel position remains unfilled 
for more than thirty (30) days, then the fixed monthly charge shall be reduced by 
the then current salary amount for that position until the position is filled.  For the 
purposes of this paragraph, key personnel positions include Operations Manager, 
Safety and Training Manager, and Maintenance Manager.” 

iii. Additional Key Performance Indicators with the corresponding amount of 
liquidated damages are hereby inserted in accordance with Exhibit A, attached 
hereto. 

 
10. The Agreement remains in full force and effect in accordance with its terms.  There are 

no other modifications, express or implied, except as herein provided. 
 

11. YCIPTA and CONTRACTOR each represent to the other that (i) the party signing this 
Amendment on behalf thereof is duly authorized to do so, and (ii) this Amendment is binding 
upon such party in accordance with its terms. This Amendment may be executed in multiple 
counterparts and by facsimile signatures with the same effect of an original. 
 
 
 

---SIGNATURES ON THE NEXT PAGE--- 
 

66



 

5 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this First Amendment to 
Agreement for the Provision of General Public Fixed-Route and Demand Response Services on 
the day and year first above written. 
 
 
YUMA COUNTY INTERGOVERNMENTAL  
PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
 
 
By:___________________________________________   

Shelly Kreger, Transit Director  
 
 
ATTEST: 

 
 
By:___________________________________________   

Carol Perez, Management Analyst 
 

 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 
 
By:____________________________________________   

Minda M. Davy, YCIPTA Legal Counsel  
 
 
NATIONAL EXPRESS TRANSIT  
SERVICES CORPORATION 
 
 
         
Judith Crawford, Chief Executive Officer 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

67



 

6 
 

 

EXHIBIT A 
 

Additional Key Performance Indicators – Appendix E 

68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



152



153



154



155



156



157



158



159



160



161



162



163



164



165



166



167



168



169



170



171



172



173



174



175



176



177



178



179



180



181



182



183



184



185



186



187



188



189



190



191



192



193



194



195



196



197



198



199



200



201



202



203



204



205



206



207



208



209



210



211



212



213



214



215



216



217



218



219



220



221



222



223



224



225



226



227



228



229



230



231



232



233



234



235



236



237



238



239



240



241



242



243



244



245



246



247



248



249



250



251



252



253



254



255



_____________________________________________________________________________ 
Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Board Of Directors 

Bill Lee, Chairman - City of Somerton, Susan Thorpe, Vice Chairman – Yuma County, Larry Killman  – 
Sec/Treasurer – Town of Wellton, Greg Wilkinson – City of Yuma, Brian Golding, Sr.-Quechan Tribe,  

Dr.  Michael Sabath - Northern Arizona University, Dr. Daniel Corr - Arizona Western College,  
Ralph Velez - City of San Luis, Paul Soto – Cocopah Tribe  

Shelly Kreger, Transit Director 

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority 
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

2715 East 14th Street, Yuma, AZ 85365-1900, Telephone: 928-539-7076 
Fax: 928-783-0309, email: info@ycipta.az.gov, Web: www.ycipta.az.gov  

Transit Director Report – August 2017 

• Arbocs:  The three Arbocs have arrived and are getting ready to be put into
service.  The 4th bus in on order.

• Fleet inspections and Quality Assurance:  Fleet inspections continue as
with the Q & A.  This will continue until staff is satisfied with the
maintenance of the fleet.

• Maintenance Software:  We have received estimates for maintenance
tracking software.  It had been tracked under Solutions for Transit and most
currently under EAM which is what National Express was using.  This
software has proven to be not user friendly or available for YCIPTA staff to
use.  We are reviewing Dossier on Demand, RTA and Cetaris.

• FTA 5339 Grant:  YCIPTA received a 2017 FTA Section 5307/5339
Competitive Funding Pool Award through ADOT in the amount of $648,000
that will be used to purchase 2 more Gillig buses.

• FTA Real Estate Training:  I completed the training course for acquiring
real estate using FTA funds.

• ADOT 5310/5311 Implementation Meetings:  Staff attended both 5310
and 5311 Implementation meetings with ADOT.

256

mailto:info@ycipta.az.gov
http://www.ycipta.az.gov/


Routes  Basic $2 
 Deviation 

$2 
 Disc $1 

 Day 
Pass  $5 

 Pass 
Accepted 

 Disc Pass 
$2.50 

 Trfr 
 Free 
Ride 

AZTEC  YPIC  AWC  Cocopah  Vista  W/C  Bike 
 Riders 
Guide/  
Paper 

 Passenger 
Total 

Orange 2 294         96        32          437           28            1          1        429     17             1        3      29    8          1,336         
Brown 3 52           19              65        13          152           16            1        -           -         29        2               -         1      22    6          349            
Green 4 254         - 223     82          587           66            5          1        112     100           1        9      59    7          1,431         
Blue 5 290         - 151     90          417           38            3          -         7          109           -         13    30    4          1,105         

Purple 6 318         - 272     85          271           30            1          -         28        1,683       1        25    88    10        2,689         
Green 4A 154         - 149     65          494           77            1          2        66        44             1        11    44    4          1,053         

Gold 8 21           1 9          8            15             16            4        -           -         12        2               -         -       -       -           88               
Silver 9 9              - 2          15          1               -           -         100     -                -         -       -       -           127            

Turquoise 10 132         - -           -         -           -                -         8      1      -           132            
Yellow 95 5,748      - 3,270  1,148    3,108       312          21        4        427     365           14      36    317  41        14,417       
NightCAT 40           - 5          -             35             -           -         47        19             -         -       -       -           146            

Total 7,312      20              4,242  1,538    5,517       583         5        -         32        8        1,257  2,341       18      106  590  80        22,873       

Day Pass $5 $7,690.00

$28,093.50

106

July 2017 - Ridership and Fares

CASH FARES PASS MEDIA MISC. REV SPECIALTY REVENUE STATISTICS

Grand Total

Total Wheelchairs

Basic $2
Deviation $2

Disc  $1

Discount Pass $2.50
Guides/ Paper $0.50

Cash Fares Collected - All
$14,624.00

$40.00
$4,242.00

$1,457.50
$40.00

257



Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority 
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

2715 East 14th Street, Yuma, AZ 85365-1900, Telephone: 928-539-7076 
Fax: 928-783-0309, email: info@ycipta.az.gov, Web: www.ycipta.az.gov  

Summary Financial Report for August 2017 

This report is a summary for the period July and August 2017.   The attached monthly 
profit and loss statements are unaudited figures. 

Reconciled account balances for YCIPTA checking accounts held at 1st Bank Yuma for 
the following months are as follows: 

August 31, 2017 
Greyhound  $7,091.87 
General $328,127.39 
Payroll $19,902.36 
Fare Revenue $48,351.32 

August 31, 2017 
YC Treasurer $207,419.80 

Greyhound sales by Month 
July $10,989.25 
August $14,282.70 

Fare Revenue by Month 
July 2017 
YCAT $25,588.27 
On Call $462.65 
August 2017 
YCAT $44,548.15 
On Call  $895.00 

Accounts payable as of August 31, 2017, was $274,696.95   
Accounts receivable as of August 31, 2017, was $268,569.50 

Accounts payable includes July 2017 invoice for National Express. 

258

mailto:info@ycipta.az.gov
http://www.ycipta.az.gov/


 10:07 AM
 09/21/17
 Accrual Basis

 Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Auth.
 Executive Board P&L

 July 2017

Jul 17 Jul 17 YTD Budget % of Budget Jul 16 Jul 16 YTD Budget
% of 

Budget

Ordinary Income/Expense Ordinary Income/Expense

Income Income

40000 · Intergovernmental 40000 · Intergovernmental

40700 · Miscellaneous Revenues 40700 · Miscellaneous Revenues
40799-3 · Advertising 
Sales 0.00 0.00 16,000.00 0.0%

40799-3 · Advertising 
Sales 3,375.00 3,375.00 16,000.00 21.09%

40799-4 · Greyhound 
Commisions - YCIPTA -2,261.13 -2,261.13 31,200.00 -7.25%

40799-4 · Greyhound 
Commisions - YCIPTA 2,625.71 2,625.71 30,000.00 8.75%

40799-5 · Interest 86.63 86.63 1,400.00 6.19% 40799-5 · Interest 320.73 320.73 0.00 100.0%

40799-6 · Miscellaneous 
Revenues 72.89 72.89 1,400.00 5.21%

40799-6 · Miscellaneous 
Revenues 157.64 157.64

Total 40700 · Miscellaneous Revenu -2,101.61 -2,101.61 50,000.00 -4.2% Total 40700 · Miscellaneous Revenues 6,479.08 6,479.08 46,000.00 14.09%

40900 · Local Funding 40900 · Local Funding
40900-2 · Local Transit 
Dues 516,739.00 516,739.00 516,739.00 100.0%

40900-2 · Local Transit 
Dues 516,739.00 516,739.00 516,739.00 100.0%

40900-4 · Contributions 
Public Entities 69,750.00 69,750.00 494,023.00 14.12%

40900-4 · Contributions 
Public Entities 101,205.43 101,205.43 367,686.00 27.53%

Total 40900 · Local Funding 586,489.00 586,489.00 1,010,762.00 58.02% Total 40900 · Local Funding 617,944.43 617,944.43 884,425.00 69.87%

41101 · State Grants 41101 · State Grants

41101-1 · ADOT 5311 0.00 0.00 2,402,432.00 0.0% 41101-1 · ADOT 5311 78,918.48 78,918.48 1,099,107.00 7.18%
41101-2 · ADOT 5310 0.00 0.00 50,000.00 0.0% 41101-2 · ADOT 5310 0.00 0.00 25,000.00 0.0%

Total 41101 · State Grants 0.00 0.00 2,452,432.00 0.0% Total 41101 · State Grants 78,918.48 78,918.48 1,124,107.00 7.02%

41300 · Federal Grant Revenue 41300 · Federal Grant Revenue

41399-1 · FTA 5307 0.00 0.00 8,645,290.00 0.0% 41399-1 · FTA 5307 101,935.00 101,935.00 5,173,174.00 1.97%
41399-4 · STP Capital 
Grant 0.00 0.00 272,810.00 0.0%

41399-4 · STP Capital 
Grant 0.00 0.00 145,792.00 0.0%

Total 41300 · Federal Grant Revenue 0.00 0.00 8,918,100.00 0.0% Total 41300 · Federal Grant Revenue 101,935.00 101,935.00 5,318,966.00 1.92%

Total 40000 · Intergovernmental 584,387.39 584,387.39 12,431,294.00 4.7% Total 40000 · Intergovernmental 805,276.99 805,276.99 7,373,498.00 10.92%

41000 · Charges for Service 41000 · Charges for Service

40100 · Fare Revenue 40100 · Fare Revenue

40101 · YCAT Fares 25,588.27 25,588.27 412,638.00 6.2% 40101 · YCAT Fares 26,566.83 26,566.83 360,001.00 7.38%
40190 · On Call Fares 462.65 462.65 9,784.00 4.73% 40190 · On Call Fares 414.00 414.00 8,400.00 4.93%

Total 40100 · Fare Revenue 26,050.92 26,050.92 422,422.00 6.17% Total 40100 · Fare Revenue 26,980.83 26,980.83 368,401.00 7.32%

Total 41000 · Charges for Service 26,050.92 26,050.92 422,422.00 6.17% Total 41000 · Charges for Service 26,980.83 26,980.83 368,401.00 7.32%

Total Income 610,438.31 610,438.31 12,853,716.00 4.75% Total Income 832,257.82 832,257.82 7,741,899.00 10.75%

Gross Profit 610,438.31 610,438.31 12,853,716.00 4.75% Gross Profit 832,257.82 832,257.82 7,741,899.00 10.75%

Expense Expense

50100 · Salaries and Wages 50100 · Salaries and Wages

50102 · Regular Salaries and Wage 21,942.08 21,942.08 310,607.00 7.06% 50102 · Regular Salaries and Wage 9,497.34 9,497.34 260,190.00 3.65%

50103 · Temporary Employee Salarie 800.00 800.00 5,000.00 16.0% 50103 · Temporary Employee Salaries 0.00 0.00 8,000.00 0.0%

Total 50100 · Salaries and Wages 22,742.08 22,742.08 315,607.00 7.21% Total 50100 · Salaries and Wages 9,497.34 9,497.34 268,190.00 3.54%

50200 · Fringe Benefits 50200 · Fringe Benefits

50201 · FICA- SS & Medicare 1,739.77 1,739.77 26,122.00 6.66% 50201 · FICA- SS & Medicare 1,338.62 1,338.62 21,882.00 6.12%

50202 · ASRS 2,523.35 2,523.35 35,720.00 7.06% 50202 · ASRS 2,008.82 2,008.82 29,870.00 6.73%

50203 · Health Insurance 3,215.00 3,215.00 50,736.00 6.34% 50203 · Health Insurance 2,914.00 2,914.00 43,488.00 6.7%

20162017

 Page 1 of 3259



 10:07 AM
 09/21/17
 Accrual Basis

 Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Auth.
 Executive Board P&L

 July 2017

Jul 17 Jul 17 YTD Budget % of Budget Jul 16 Jul 16 YTD Budget
% of 

Budget

20162017

50204 · FUTA 17.01 17.01 500.00 3.4% 50204 · FUTA 7.96 7.96 300.00 2.65%

50205 · Life Insurance 51.70 51.70 3,969.00 1.3% 50205 · Life Insurance 110.00 110.00 1,500.00 7.33%

50207 · State Unemployment 0.00 0.00 3,000.00 0.0% 50207 · State Unemployment 587.76 587.76 9,100.00 6.46%

50208 · Workers Compensation Ins -82.59 -82.59 2,500.00 -3.3% 50208 · Workers Compensation Ins 0.00 0.00 2,300.00 0.0%

Total 50200 · Fringe Benefits 7,464.24 7,464.24 122,547.00 6.09% Total 50200 · Fringe Benefits 6,967.16 6,967.16 108,440.00 6.43%

50300 · Services 50300 · Services

50301-1 · ADA Paratransit 0.00 0.00 320,000.00 0.0% 50301-1 · ADA Paratransit 8,310.45 8,310.45 112,000.00 7.42%

50301-2 · Accounting & Audit 0.00 0.00 25,000.00 0.0% 50301-2 · Accounting & Audit 0.00 0.00 24,070.00 0.0%

50301-3 · Vanpool Subsidy 0.00 0.00 126,000.00 0.0% 50301-3 · Vanpool Subsidy 21,000.00 21,000.00 126,000.00 16.67%

50302 · Advertising 1,409.90 1,409.90 80,000.00 1.76% 50302 · Advertising 3,795.82 3,795.82 55,000.00 6.9%

50303-1 · Legal Services 1,110.00 1,110.00 15,000.00 7.4% 50303-1 · Legal Services 900.00 900.00 15,000.00 6.0%

50303-2 · Cash Handel/Payroll Proce 470.24 470.24 6,300.00 7.46% 50303-2 · Cash Handel/Payroll Process 413.49 413.49 6,000.00 6.89%

50303-3 · IT Support/Web Developm 845.00 845.00 15,000.00 5.63% 50303-3 · IT Support/Web Developmen 890.00 890.00 19,000.00 4.68%

50304 · Temporary Help 0.00 0.00 3,000.00 0.0% 50304 · Temporary Help 1,998.80 1,998.80 18,400.00 10.86%

50305-0 · Bus Contractor 149,226.03 149,226.03 2,393,562.00 6.23% 50305-0 · Bus Contractor 201,851.76 201,851.76 2,646,355.00 7.63%

50305-1 · Contract Costs 12,361.82 12,361.82 69,600.00 17.76% 50305-1 · Contract Costs 0.00 0.00 52,833.00 0.0%

50305-2 · Equipment Maintenance 0.00 0.00 40,000.00 0.0% 50305-2 · Equipment Maintenance 19,610.50 19,610.50 127,195.00 15.42%

50305-3 · Office Equip Repair 0.00 0.00 3,000.00 0.0% 50305-3 · Office Equip Repair 0.00 0.00 3,000.00 0.0%

50305-4 · Vehicle Repair & Maintanc 0.00 0.00 280,000.00 0.0% 50305-4 · Vehicle Repair & Maintance 0.00 0.00 528,666.00 0.0%

50305-5 · Building Repairs & Mainta 0.00 0.00 12,000.00 0.0% 50305-5 · Building Repairs & Maintanc 1,169.96 1,169.96 12,000.00 9.75%

50305-6 · Communications/Radio Se 13,650.00 13,650.00 4,000.00 341.25% 50305-6 · Communications/Radio Serv 125.32 125.32 15,000.00 0.84%

50305-7 · Grounds Keeping/Pest Co 0.00 0.00 500.00 0.0% 50305-7 · Grounds Keeping/Pest Contr 0.00 0.00 2,500.00 0.0%

50305-8 · Software Updates/Mainten 2,514.38 2,514.38 50,400.00 4.99% 50305-8 · Software Updates/Maintenan 1,788.05 1,788.05 33,000.00 5.42%

50306-1 · Bus Cleaning Services 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

50306 · Janitorial Service 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

50307 · Security Services 0.00 0.00 500.00 0.0% 50307 · Security Services 0.00 0.00 1,500.00 0.0%

Total 50300 · Services 181,587.37 181,587.37 3,443,862.00 5.27% Total 50300 · Services 261,854.15 261,854.15 3,797,519.00 6.9%

50400 · Materials and Supplies 50400 · Materials and Supplies

50401 · Fuel, Oil, Lubricants 26,522.80 26,522.80 400,000.00 6.63% 50401 · Fuel, Oil, Lubricants 25,724.61 25,724.61 470,000.00 5.47%

50499-1 · Office Supplies 257.19 257.19 7,000.00 3.67% 50499-1 · Office Supplies 274.30 274.30 7,000.00 3.92%

50499-2 · Postage 0.00 0.00 1,700.00 0.0% 50499-2 · Postage 213.73 213.73 1,700.00 12.57%

50499-3 · Printing 957.84 957.84 25,000.00 3.83% 50499-3 · Printing 362.42 362.42 25,000.00 1.45%

50499-4 · Misc Materials & Supplies 234.32 234.32 25,000.00 0.94% 50499-4 · Misc Materials & Supplies 179.36 179.36 25,000.00 0.72%

Total 50400 · Materials and Supplies 27,972.15 27,972.15 458,700.00 6.1% Total 50400 · Materials and Supplies 26,754.42 26,754.42 528,700.00 5.06%

50500 · Utilities 50500 · Utilities

50501 · Electricty 1,733.69 1,733.69 17,000.00 10.2% 50501 · Electricty 1,849.20 1,849.20 18,000.00 10.27%

50502-1 · Refuse Disposal 155.20 155.20 1,200.00 12.93% 50502-1 · Refuse Disposal 0.00 0.00 1,200.00 0.0%

50502-2 · Water - Offices 123.74 123.74 1,000.00 12.37% 50502-2 · Water - Offices 61.34 61.34 1,600.00 3.83%

Total 50500 · Utilities 2,012.63 2,012.63 19,200.00 10.48% Total 50500 · Utilities 1,910.54 1,910.54 20,800.00 9.19%

50600 · Casualty and Liability Insuranc 50600 · Casualty and Liability Insuranc

50608-1 · Gen Liab Insurance -157.57 -157.57 3,500.00 -4.5% 50608-1 · Gen Liab Insurance 0.00 0.00 3,000.00 0.0%

50608-2 · Prof. Liability Insurance -368.89 -368.89 4,500.00 -8.2% 50608-2 · Prof. Liability Insurance 0.00 0.00 4,200.00 0.0%

50608-3 · Automobile Insurance -570.45 -570.45 9,500.00 -6.01% 50608-3 · Automobile Insurance 0.00 0.00 9,000.00 0.0%

 Page 2 of 3260



 10:07 AM
 09/21/17
 Accrual Basis

 Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Auth.
 Executive Board P&L

 July 2017

Jul 17 Jul 17 YTD Budget % of Budget Jul 16 Jul 16 YTD Budget
% of 

Budget

20162017

Total 50600 · Casualty and Liability -1,096.91 -1,096.91 17,500.00 -6.27% Total 50600 · Casualty and Liability Insura 0.00 0.00 16,200.00 0.0%

50900 · Miscellaneous Expenses 50900 · Miscellaneous Expenses

50901 · Memberships/Dues/Subcript 7,612.00 7,612.00 18,000.00 42.29% 50901 · Memberships/Dues/Subcriptio 7,872.00 7,872.00 18,000.00 43.73%

50902 · Travel Expenses 2,463.18 2,463.18 25,000.00 9.85% 50902 · Travel Expenses 585.40 585.40 25,000.00 2.34%

50906 · Finance Charges/Penalties 28.32 28.32 13,000.00 0.22% 50906 · Finance Charges/Penalties 33.11 33.11 15,100.00 0.22%

50999-1 · License and Permits 0.00 0.00 300.00 0.0% 50999-1 · License and Permits 0.00 0.00 300.00 0.0%

50999-2 · Training/Education 548.00 548.00 25,000.00 2.19% 50999-2 · Training/Education 0.00 0.00 10,000.00 0.0%

50999-3 · Other Misc Expense 100.00 100.00 156,800.00 0.06% 50999-3 · Other Misc Expense 1,432.94 1,432.94 6,800.00 21.07%

50999-5 · Telephone/Internet 503.59 503.59 8,000.00 6.3% 50999-4 · Miscellaneous Consumables 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

50900 · Miscellaneous Expenses - O 0.00 0.00 50999-5 · Telephone/Internet 543.19 543.19 8,000.00 6.79%

Total 50900 · Miscellaneous Expens 11,255.09 11,255.09 246,100.00 4.57% Total 50900 · Miscellaneous Expenses 10,466.64 10,466.64 83,200.00 12.58%

51200 · Leases and Rentals 51200 · Leases and Rentals

51212-1 · Building Lease 4,200.00 4,200.00 50,400.00 8.33% 51212-1 · Building Lease 4,200.00 4,200.00 50,400.00 8.33%

51212-2 · Leases Rental Equipment 0.00 0.00 1,000.00 0.0% 51212-2 · Leases Rental Equipment 0.00 0.00 1,000.00 0.0%

51212-3 · Bus Lease 0.00 0.00 90,000.00 0.0% 51212-3 · Bus Lease 0.00 0.00

Total 51200 · Leases and Rentals 4,200.00 4,200.00 141,400.00 2.97% Total 51200 · Leases and Rentals 4,200.00 4,200.00 51,400.00 8.17%

51600 · Capital Outlay 51600 · Capital Outlay

51600-3 · Buildings/Mutli Modal Cen 1,200.00 1,200.00 3,787,500.00 0.03% 51600-1 · Capital Outlay - less than $5k 0.00 0.00 20,000.00 0.0%

51600-5 · Automobiles 0.00 0.00 3,272,000.00 0.0% 51600-3 · Buildings/Mutli Modal Center 0.00 0.00 2,687,450.00 0.0%

51600-6 · Furniture and Equipment 0.00 0.00 1,029,300.00 0.0% 51600-5 · Automobiles 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Total 51600 · Capital Outlay 1,200.00 1,200.00 8,088,800.00 0.02% 51600-6 · Furniture and Equipment 0.00 0.00 160,000.00 0.0%

Total Expense 257,336.65 257,336.65 12,853,716.00 2.0% Total 51600 · Capital Outlay 0.00 0.00 2,867,450.00 0.0%

Net Ordinary Income 353,101.66 353,101.66 0.00 100.0% Total Expense 321,650.25 321,650.25 7,741,899.00 4.16%

Other Income/Expense Net Ordinary Income 510,607.57 510,607.57 0.00 100.0%

Other Income Other Income

70000 · In Kind Contributions 0.00 0.00 590,643.00 0.0% 70000 · In Kind Contributions 0.00 0.00 527,517.00 0.0%

Total Other Income 0.00 0.00 590,643.00 0.0% Total Other Income 0.00 0.00 527,517.00 0.0%

Other Expense Other Expense

70001 · In Kind Expenses 0.00 0.00 590,643.00 0.0% 70001 · In Kind Expenses 0.00 0.00 527,517.00 0.0%

Total Other Expense 0.00 0.00 590,643.00 0.0% Total Other Expense 0.00 0.00 527,517.00 0.0%

Net Other Income 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% Net Other Income 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Net Income 353,101.66 353,101.66 0.00 100.0% Net Income 510,607.57 510,607.57 0.00 100.0%

 Page 3 of 3261



 10:09 AM
 09/21/17
 Accrual Basis

 Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Auth.
 Executive Board P&L

 August 2017

Aug 17 Jul - Aug 17 YTD Budget % of Budget Aug 16 Jul - Aug 16 YTD Budget % of Budget

Ordinary Income/Expense Ordinary Income/Expense

Income Income

40000 · Intergovernmental 40000 · Intergovernmental

40700 · Miscellaneous Revenues 40700 · Miscellaneous Revenues
40799-3 · Advertising 
Sales 302.50 302.50 16,000.00 1.89%

40799-3 · Advertising 
Sales 3,127.50 6,502.50 16,000.00 40.64%

40799-4 · Greyhound 
Commisions - YCIPTA 3,240.94 979.81 31,200.00 3.14%

40799-4 · Greyhound 
Commisions - YCIPTA -731.80 1,893.91 30,000.00 6.31%

40799-5 · Interest 226.33 312.96 1,400.00 22.35% 40799-5 · Interest 364.25 684.98 0.00 100.0%

40799-6 · Miscellaneous 
Revenues 5.70 78.59 1,400.00 5.61%

40799-6 · Miscellaneous 
Revenues 12.00 169.64

Total 40700 · Miscellaneous Revenue 3,775.47 1,673.86 50,000.00 3.35% Total 40700 · Miscellaneous Revenues 2,771.95 9,251.03 46,000.00 20.11%

40900 · Local Funding 40900 · Local Funding
40900-2 · Local Transit 
Dues 0.00 516,739.00 516,739.00 100.0%

40900-2 · Local Transit 
Dues 0.00 516,739.00 516,739.00 100.0%

40900-4 · Contributions 
Public Entities 0.00 69,750.00 494,023.00 14.12%

40900-4 · Contributions 
Public Entities 36,620.23 137,825.66 367,686.00 37.49%

Total 40900 · Local Funding 0.00 586,489.00 1,010,762.00 58.02% Total 40900 · Local Funding 36,620.23 654,564.66 884,425.00 74.01%

41101 · State Grants 41101 · State Grants

41101-1 · ADOT 5311 0.00 0.00 2,402,432.00 0.0% 41101-1 · ADOT 5311 104,546.05 183,464.53 1,099,107.00 16.69%
41101-2 · ADOT 5310 0.00 0.00 50,000.00 0.0% 41101-2 · ADOT 5310 0.00 0.00 25,000.00 0.0%

Total 41101 · State Grants 0.00 0.00 2,452,432.00 0.0% Total 41101 · State Grants 104,546.05 183,464.53 1,124,107.00 16.32%

41300 · Federal Grant Revenue 41300 · Federal Grant Revenue

41399-1 · FTA 5307 0.00 0.00 8,645,290.00 0.0% 41399-1 · FTA 5307 98,177.00 200,112.00 5,173,174.00 3.87%
41399-4 · STP Capital 
Grant 0.00 0.00 272,810.00 0.0%

41399-4 · STP Capital 
Grant 0.00 0.00 145,792.00 0.0%

Total 41300 · Federal Grant Revenue 0.00 0.00 8,918,100.00 0.0% Total 41300 · Federal Grant Revenue 98,177.00 200,112.00 5,318,966.00 3.76%

Total 40000 · Intergovernmental 3,775.47 588,162.86 12,431,294.00 4.73% Total 40000 · Intergovernmental 242,115.23 1,047,392.22 7,373,498.00 14.21%

41000 · Charges for Service 41000 · Charges for Service

40100 · Fare Revenue 40100 · Fare Revenue

40101 · YCAT Fares 44,548.15 70,136.42 412,638.00 17.0% 40101 · YCAT Fares 34,495.07 61,061.90 360,001.00 16.96%
40190 · On Call Fares 895.00 1,357.65 9,784.00 13.88% 40190 · On Call Fares 966.00 1,380.00 8,400.00 16.43%

Total 40100 · Fare Revenue 45,443.15 71,494.07 422,422.00 16.93% Total 40100 · Fare Revenue 35,461.07 62,441.90 368,401.00 16.95%

Total 41000 · Charges for Service 45,443.15 71,494.07 422,422.00 16.93% Total 41000 · Charges for Service 35,461.07 62,441.90 368,401.00 16.95%

Total Income 49,218.62 659,656.93 12,853,716.00 5.13% Total Income 277,576.30 1,109,834.12 7,741,899.00 14.34%

Gross Profit 49,218.62 659,656.93 12,853,716.00 5.13% Gross Profit 277,576.30 1,109,834.12 7,741,899.00 14.34%

Expense Expense

50100 · Salaries and Wages 50100 · Salaries and Wages

50102 · Regular Salaries and Wage 22,744.08 44,686.16 310,607.00 14.39% 50102 · Regular Salaries and Wage 19,470.25 28,967.59 260,190.00 11.13%

50103 · Temporary Employee Salaries 0.00 800.00 5,000.00 16.0% 50103 · Temporary Employee Salaries 0.00 0.00 8,000.00 0.0%

Total 50100 · Salaries and Wages 22,744.08 45,486.16 315,607.00 14.41% Total 50100 · Salaries and Wages 19,470.25 28,967.59 268,190.00 10.8%

50200 · Fringe Benefits 50200 · Fringe Benefits

50201 · FICA- SS & Medicare 1,739.92 3,479.69 26,122.00 13.32% 50201 · FICA- SS & Medicare 1,489.48 2,828.10 21,882.00 12.92%

50202 · ASRS 2,615.56 5,138.91 35,720.00 14.39% 50202 · ASRS 2,236.25 4,245.07 29,870.00 14.21%

20162017

 Page 1 of 3262



 10:09 AM
 09/21/17
 Accrual Basis

 Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Auth.
 Executive Board P&L

 August 2017

Aug 17 Jul - Aug 17 YTD Budget % of Budget Aug 16 Jul - Aug 16 YTD Budget % of Budget

20162017

50203 · Health Insurance 3,390.00 6,605.00 50,736.00 13.02% 50203 · Health Insurance 2,914.00 5,828.00 43,488.00 13.4%

50204 · FUTA 9.60 26.61 500.00 5.32% 50204 · FUTA 7.96 15.92 300.00 5.31%

50205 · Life Insurance 58.30 110.00 3,969.00 2.77% 50205 · Life Insurance 0.00 110.00 1,500.00 7.33%

50207 · State Unemployment 0.00 0.00 3,000.00 0.0% 50207 · State Unemployment 0.00 587.76 9,100.00 6.46%

50208 · Workers Compensation Ins 311.86 229.27 2,500.00 9.17% 50208 · Workers Compensation Ins 567.23 567.23 2,300.00 24.66%

Total 50200 · Fringe Benefits 8,125.24 15,589.48 122,547.00 12.72% Total 50200 · Fringe Benefits 7,214.92 14,182.08 108,440.00 13.08%

50300 · Services 50300 · Services

50301-1 · ADA Paratransit 0.00 0.00 320,000.00 0.0% 50301-1 · ADA Paratransit 12,824.69 21,135.14 112,000.00 18.87%

50301-2 · Accounting & Audit 0.00 0.00 25,000.00 0.0% 50301-2 · Accounting & Audit 0.00 0.00 24,070.00 0.0%

50301-3 · Vanpool Subsidy 19,500.00 19,500.00 126,000.00 15.48% 50301-3 · Vanpool Subsidy 10,500.00 31,500.00 126,000.00 25.0%

50302 · Advertising 6,096.86 7,506.76 80,000.00 9.38% 50302 · Advertising 4,733.09 8,528.91 55,000.00 15.51%

50303-1 · Legal Services 1,503.75 2,613.75 15,000.00 17.43% 50303-1 · Legal Services 1,685.00 2,585.00 15,000.00 17.23%

50303-2 · Cash Handel/Payroll Proces 646.77 1,117.01 6,300.00 17.73% 50303-2 · Cash Handel/Payroll Processing 581.68 995.17 6,000.00 16.59%

50303-3 · IT Support/Web Developme 845.00 1,690.00 15,000.00 11.27% 50303-3 · IT Support/Web Development 1,240.00 2,130.00 19,000.00 11.21%

50304 · Temporary Help 0.00 0.00 3,000.00 0.0% 50304 · Temporary Help 2,623.43 4,622.23 18,400.00 25.12%

50305-0 · Bus Contractor -35.00 149,191.03 2,393,562.00 6.23% 50305-0 · Bus Contractor 224,948.99 426,800.75 2,646,355.00 16.13%

50305-1 · Contract Costs 0.00 12,361.82 69,600.00 17.76% 50305-1 · Contract Costs 378.00 378.00 52,833.00 0.72%

50305-2 · Equipment Maintenance 0.00 0.00 40,000.00 0.0% 50305-2 · Equipment Maintenance 434.52 20,045.02 127,195.00 15.76%

50305-3 · Office Equip Repair 770.00 770.00 3,000.00 25.67% 50305-3 · Office Equip Repair 0.00 0.00 3,000.00 0.0%

50305-4 · Vehicle Repair & Maintance 0.00 0.00 280,000.00 0.0% 50305-4 · Vehicle Repair & Maintance 0.00 0.00 528,666.00 0.0%

50305-5 · Building Repairs & Maintan 0.00 0.00 12,000.00 0.0% 50305-5 · Building Repairs & Maintance 685.16 1,855.12 12,000.00 15.46%

50305-6 · Communications/Radio Ser 0.00 13,650.00 4,000.00 341.25% 50305-6 · Communications/Radio Service 125.32 250.64 15,000.00 1.67%

50305-7 · Grounds Keeping/Pest Con 0.00 0.00 500.00 0.0% 50305-7 · Grounds Keeping/Pest Control 0.00 0.00 2,500.00 0.0%

50305-8 · Software Updates/Maintena 0.00 2,514.38 50,400.00 4.99% 50305-8 · Software Updates/Maintenance 663.35 2,451.40 33,000.00 7.43%

50306-1 · Bus Cleaning Services 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

50306 · Janitorial Service 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

50307 · Security Services 0.00 0.00 500.00 0.0% 50307 · Security Services 0.00 0.00 1,500.00 0.0%

Total 50300 · Services 29,327.38 210,914.75 3,443,862.00 6.12% Total 50300 · Services 261,423.23 523,277.38 3,797,519.00 13.78%

50400 · Materials and Supplies 50400 · Materials and Supplies

50401 · Fuel, Oil, Lubricants 33,730.35 60,253.15 400,000.00 15.06% 50401 · Fuel, Oil, Lubricants 29,943.46 55,668.07 470,000.00 11.84%

50499-1 · Office Supplies 182.18 439.37 7,000.00 6.28% 50499-1 · Office Supplies 730.45 1,004.75 7,000.00 14.35%

50499-2 · Postage 60.00 60.00 1,700.00 3.53% 50499-2 · Postage 78.84 292.57 1,700.00 17.21%

50499-3 · Printing 758.38 1,716.22 25,000.00 6.87% 50499-3 · Printing 2,956.39 3,318.81 25,000.00 13.28%

50499-4 · Misc Materials & Supplies 97.63 331.95 25,000.00 1.33% 50499-4 · Misc Materials & Supplies 420.38 599.74 25,000.00 2.4%

Total 50400 · Materials and Supplies 34,828.54 62,800.69 458,700.00 13.69% Total 50400 · Materials and Supplies 34,129.52 60,883.94 528,700.00 11.52%

50500 · Utilities 50500 · Utilities

50501 · Electricty 1,743.60 3,477.29 17,000.00 20.46% 50501 · Electricty 1,777.02 3,626.22 18,000.00 20.15%

50502-1 · Refuse Disposal 123.20 278.40 1,200.00 23.2% 50502-1 · Refuse Disposal 46.40 46.40 1,200.00 3.87%

50502-2 · Water - Offices 101.57 225.31 1,000.00 22.53% 50502-2 · Water - Offices 67.54 128.88 1,600.00 8.06%

Total 50500 · Utilities 1,968.37 3,981.00 19,200.00 20.73% Total 50500 · Utilities 1,890.96 3,801.50 20,800.00 18.28%

50600 · Casualty and Liability Insuranc 50600 · Casualty and Liability Insuranc

50608-1 · Gen Liab Insurance 582.91 425.34 3,500.00 12.15% 50608-1 · Gen Liab Insurance 761.65 761.65 3,000.00 25.39%

 Page 2 of 3263



 10:09 AM
 09/21/17
 Accrual Basis

 Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Auth.
 Executive Board P&L

 August 2017

Aug 17 Jul - Aug 17 YTD Budget % of Budget Aug 16 Jul - Aug 16 YTD Budget % of Budget

20162017

50608-2 · Prof. Liability Insurance 1,603.60 1,234.71 4,500.00 27.44% 50608-2 · Prof. Liability Insurance 1,528.23 1,528.23 4,200.00 36.39%

50608-3 · Automobile Insurance 1,083.63 513.18 9,500.00 5.4% 50608-3 · Automobile Insurance 1,735.17 1,735.17 9,000.00 19.28%

Total 50600 · Casualty and Liability 3,270.14 2,173.23 17,500.00 12.42% Total 50600 · Casualty and Liability Insuran 4,025.05 4,025.05 16,200.00 24.85%

50900 · Miscellaneous Expenses 50900 · Miscellaneous Expenses

50901 · Memberships/Dues/Subcripti 500.00 8,112.00 18,000.00 45.07% 50901 · Memberships/Dues/Subcriptions 0.00 7,872.00 18,000.00 43.73%

50902 · Travel Expenses 1,571.75 4,034.93 25,000.00 16.14% 50902 · Travel Expenses 442.38 1,027.78 25,000.00 4.11%

50906 · Finance Charges/Penalties 3,555.47 3,583.79 13,000.00 27.57% 50906 · Finance Charges/Penalties 3,430.98 3,464.09 15,100.00 22.94%

50999-1 · License and Permits 0.00 0.00 300.00 0.0% 50999-1 · License and Permits 0.00 0.00 300.00 0.0%

50999-2 · Training/Education 0.00 548.00 25,000.00 2.19% 50999-2 · Training/Education 0.00 0.00 10,000.00 0.0%

50999-3 · Other Misc Expense 42.18 142.18 156,800.00 0.09% 50999-3 · Other Misc Expense 211.10 1,644.04 6,800.00 24.18%

50999-5 · Telephone/Internet 666.73 1,170.32 8,000.00 14.63% 50999-4 · Miscellaneous Consumables 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

50900 · Miscellaneous Expenses - Ot 0.00 0.00 50999-5 · Telephone/Internet 550.97 1,094.16 8,000.00 13.68%

Total 50900 · Miscellaneous Expens 6,336.13 17,591.22 246,100.00 7.15% Total 50900 · Miscellaneous Expenses 4,635.43 15,102.07 83,200.00 18.15%

51200 · Leases and Rentals 51200 · Leases and Rentals

51212-1 · Building Lease 4,200.00 8,400.00 50,400.00 16.67% 51212-1 · Building Lease 4,200.00 8,400.00 50,400.00 16.67%

51212-2 · Leases Rental Equipment 0.00 0.00 1,000.00 0.0% 51212-2 · Leases Rental Equipment 0.00 0.00 1,000.00 0.0%

51212-3 · Bus Lease 5,605.17 5,605.17 90,000.00 6.23% 51212-3 · Bus Lease 0.00 0.00

Total 51200 · Leases and Rentals 9,805.17 14,005.17 141,400.00 9.91% Total 51200 · Leases and Rentals 4,200.00 8,400.00 51,400.00 16.34%

51600 · Capital Outlay 51600 · Capital Outlay

51600-3 · Buildings/Mutli Modal Cente 0.00 1,200.00 3,787,500.00 0.03% 51600-1 · Capital Outlay - less than $5k 0.00 0.00 20,000.00 0.0%

51600-5 · Automobiles 0.00 0.00 3,272,000.00 0.0% 51600-3 · Buildings/Mutli Modal Center 0.00 0.00 2,687,450.00 0.0%

51600-6 · Furniture and Equipment 0.00 0.00 1,029,300.00 0.0% 51600-5 · Automobiles 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Total 51600 · Capital Outlay 0.00 1,200.00 8,088,800.00 0.02% 51600-6 · Furniture and Equipment 0.00 0.00 160,000.00 0.0%

Total Other Expense 0.00 0.00 590,643.00 0.0% Total Other Expense 0.00 0.00 527,517.00 0.0%

Net Other Income 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Net Income -67,186.43 285,915.23 0.00 100.0% Net Income -59,413.06 451,194.51 0.00 100.0%

 Page 3 of 3264


	Agenda 092517
	Board Minutes 07-24-2017
	DA1 - Board positions
	Bylaws - FInal - 6-23-14
	DA2 - COY Passthrough
	YCIPTA - COY Grant Pass Thru IGA Amendment DRAFT(v2) 8.29.17 md
	DA3 - COY ITS
	ITS_AMD_2017_0814_DRW_Clean Final YCIPTA ITS Services Amendment Post YCIPTA Response
	DA4 - YABC
	2nd Amend to YABC Declaration of Trust REVISED & B&B EXECUTED 9.19.17
	Amended and Restated Agreement and Declaration of Trust 
	DA5 - Advertising services
	3rd Amendment to Indep. Contractor Agmt FINAL 9.21.17 md
	DA6 - NEXT ext
	First Amendment to NE Agreement DRAFT 9.6.17 md
	Agreement with National Express
	Transit Director Report
	Ridership July 2017
	Sheet1

	August 2017_EB Financial Summary Report_09.21.17
	July 2017-Working Papers-9.21.17.pdf
	Sheet1

	Aug 2017-Working Papers-9.21.17.pdf
	Sheet1





